T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 23 AUGUST
2017

Time: 7.00 PM, OR UPON THE

RISING OF THE MAJOR
APPLICATIONS PLANNING
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER
IS LATEST

COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8
1UW

Venue:

Members of the Public and
Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Meeting
Details:

This Agenda is available online at:
www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

Phase Il, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman)
Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Jem Duducu

Councillor Duncan Flynn

Councillor Raymond Graham

Councillor Henry Higgins

Councillor Manijit Khatra

Councillor John Oswell

Councillor Jazz Dhillon

Published: Tuesday, 15 August 2017

Contact: Liz Penny
Tel: 01895 250185
Email:  epenny®@hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for Absence

2  Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3  To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-6
4  Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent
5

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 52 Field End Road - Eastcote & | Two storey, 3-bed, detached 7-20
4913/APP/2016/4358 | East dwelling and conversion of
Ruislip dwelling house into 1 x 1-bed and

1 x 2-bed self-contained units
involving single storey rear
extension with associated parking
and amenity space, involving
demolition of existing garage.

Recommendation: Refusal

7 | 197 Field End Road - | Eastcote & | Installation of roller shutter. 21-30
22149/APP/2017/2101 | East
Ruislip

Recommendation: Refusal




8 | 88 Long Lane - Ickenham | Three storey building comprising 31-350
29164/APP/2016/4622 of 7 x 2-bed and 2 x 1-bed flats
with associated parking, cycle and
amenity space, involving
demolition of existing detached
dwelling.
Recommendation: Approval
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | 35 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham | Change of use from Use Class A2 | 51 -66
Ickenham - (Bank) to Use Class A1/A3
3445/APP/2017/1715 (Shops/Restaurants/Cafes) with
external alterations
Recommendation: Approval
10| 236 Swakeleys Road - | Ickenham | Change of use from a group home | 67 - 82
72634/APP/2017/769 into 5 x 1-bed self-contained flats
with associated parking and cycle
stores.
Recommendation: Approval
11| Pembroke House, 5-9 | West Extension of the 4th floor to 83 -94
Pembroke Road - Ruislip provide 1 x 2 bedroom unit (Use
38324/APP/2017/2287 Class C3)
Recommendation: Refusal
12| Club House, West Single storey building for use as 95-104
Middlesex Stadium - Ruislip changing rooms, involving
17942/APP/2017/2084 demolition of existing outbuilding.
Recommendation: Approval
Other
13 11 Harvil Road - Tree Preservation Order No. 759 - pages 105 - 111

Recommendation: Preserved

PART | - Plans for North Planning Committee - pages 113 - 172




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

Agenda ltem 3

INGDON

LONDON

THILL

NORTH Planning Committee

2 August 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), John Morgan (Vice-Chairman), Duncan Flynn,
Raymond Graham, Manijit Khatra, John Oswell, Jazz Dhillon and David Yarrow
(Reserve) (In place of Jem Duducu)

LBH Officers Present:

Zenab Haji-lsmail (Principal Planning Officer), James McClean Smith (Major Planning
Applications Officer), Manmohan Ranger (Transport Consultant), James Rodger (Head
of Planning and Enforcement) and Luke Taylor (Democratic Services Officer)

43. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies were received from Councillor Duducu, with Councillor Yarrow substituting.

44, | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

None.

45. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda ltem
3)

None.

46. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)

It was confirmed that items marked Part | would be considered in public, and items
marked Part Il would be considered in private.

47. | 21 NICHOLAS WAY, NORTHWOOD - 22734/APP/2017/900 (Agenda Item 5)

Two-storey, five-bedroom detached dwelling with associated parking and
amenity space, involving demolition of existing building.

Officers introduced the application, which sought for the erection of a two-storey, five-
bedroom detached dwelling, and noted the addendum, which highlighted a change to
condition 6.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, and commented that 28 residents
signed the petition. Residents were concerned that the projected loss of three trees
covered by Tree Preservation Orders in an Area of Special Character would set a

Page 1




precedent and Members heard that in a quarter of Copse Wood, 57 trees were already
approved for removal, and if this projection continued along the rest of the road, over
200 trees would be removed.

Officers confirmed that it was confirmed more than three trees would be removed, but
only three were covered by TPOs; two cypress trees and one oak tree. Responding to
Members' questioning, it was confirmed by Officers that when these were surveyed, the
trees were considered to be of declining quality and would be replaced with high quality
trees. Councillors heard that standard practice was to plant small replacement trees,
but this could be altered in a landscaping condition should the Committee wish.

Members confirmed that they wished to alter the landscaping condition to ensure that
replacement trees were semi-mature, and the officer's recommendation was moved,
subject to the change to the landscaping condition and delegated authority to the
Chairman and Labour Lead to ensure that Councillors were satisfied with the proposed
condition.

The proposal was then seconded and unanimously agreed when put to a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to an additional
condition regarding landscaping, and delegated authority to the Head of
Planning and Enforcement, in conjunction with the Chairman and the Labour
Lead.

48.

1A GROVE ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 14379/APP/2017/1592 (Agenda Item 6)

Two-storey, five-bed detached dwelling with habitable roofspace, parking and
amenity space, involving demolition of existing bungalow.

Officers introduced the application for a two-storey, five-bed detached dwelling, and
highlighted the addendum, which proposed an additional condition.

A petitioner, in objection, spoke to the Committee and stated that the building is
overbearing with very limited changes from a previous application that was refused.
Members heard that in contrast with the previous proposal, the readjustment of the
dwelling on the site moves it closer to 1 Grove Road, and as the site sits deeper in the
plot, it is now closer to the garden, pool and patio of 26 Moor Park Road; with the
dormer windows to the rear of the site, this would lead to overlooking of 26 Moor Park
Road, and impact on neighbours' amenities.

The agent for the application addressed the Committee and commented that changes
have been made from the previous application to overcome the reasons for rejection.
Members heard that the proposal is smaller, with less impact on the street scene and
neighbouring amenities, with the ridge height lower than 1 Grove Road and it set back
in the plot to match the existing building line on Grove Road.

Councillor Seaman-Digby, Councillor for Northwood Ward, supported the refusal of the
application and informed the Committee that he believed there were minimal changes
from the previously refused application, and the impact on amenities and size and bulk
of the application, in relation to the plot size, were unacceptable.

Responding to questioning from the Committee, the Head of Planning and
Enforcement confirmed that the application met planning policy with regards to
overlooking, and the distances between the proposal and 26 Moor Park Lane were
acceptable.

Members expressed sympathy with the petitioners, but recognised the work the
applicant had done to find a more acceptable proposal and noted that the application
complies with planning regulations and would be difficult to refuse.

Page 2




The Committee stated that they would like to add a condition to ensure obscure glazing
was used for the habitable roofspace, and confirmed they also supported a condition to
ensure the garage was built for that use only.

The officers' recommendation, subject to the additional conditions, was then moved,
seconded, and upon being put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to the additional
conditions:

1. Obscure glazing was used to the rear windows of the habitable roofspace;
and

2. The garage shall be used only for the accommodation of private motor
vehicles incidental to the use of the dwellinghouse as a residence.

49.

2 RAISINS HILL, EASTCOTE, PINNER - 32216/APP/2017/1290 (Agenda Item 7)

Two two-storey, three-bed semi-detached dwellings with habitable roofspace and
associated parking and amenity space.

Officers introduced the application which sought the demolition of the existing dwelling,
and the erection of two two-storey, three-bed semi-detached dwellings, and highlighted
the addendum, which including an amendment to condition 5.

A petitioner, in objection to the application, addressed the Committee and stated that
the proposal was unprecedented in the area. Members heard that the proposal would
lead to a loss of light and visual amenity for neighbouring properties, and its size and
bulk constituted an overdevelopment that would lead it be 70% larger than over houses
in the street. The petitioner noted that the proposed development was very close to the
boundary of the site, and noted that the reduced gap with the neighbouring properties
on the ground floor was out of keeping with the street scene. Furthermore, it was noted
that the building materials proposed were different to the rest of the street.

The agent for the applicant informed Members that two previous applications had been
rejected, but the applicant hoped that this proposal had met the planning requirements
and addressed previous concerns. The Committee heard that the bulk and size of the
application had been reduced and separation differences were improved, along with a
reduced roof pitch, removal of dormer windows, and obscured high level rooflights. The
agent also noted that the architecture of the proposal matched the street scene, and
softened the proposal's appearance.

Members sought clarification regarding the rear dormer windows and rooflights, and
were informed that the current plans sought high level rooflights but did not include
dormer windows. Responding to questioning from the Committee, the Head of Planning
and Enforcement confirmed that a condition could be added to ensure that the
rooflights do not protrude too far from the roof.

Councillors expressed concern regarding the materials used in the development and its
impact on the street scene, and were informed that condition 3 could be made more
robust to ensure that the materials matched those used elsewhere on Raisins Hill.

The Committee moved the officer's recommendation, subject to alterations to
conditions 2 and 3, to be agreed under delegated authority to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement. This proposal was then seconded and, upon being put to a vote, was
agreed with four votes in favour, and three votes against.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to alterations to
conditions 2 and 3, and delegated authority to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement.

Page 3




50. | 42 RAISINS HILL, EASTCOTE, PINNER - 27718/APP/2017/1559 (Agenda Item 8)
The item was withdrawn prior to the meeting.

51. | RUISLIP TELEPHONE EXCHANGE, HIGH STREET, RUISLIP -
10105/APP/2017/1329 (Agenda Item 9)
The item was withdrawn prior to the meeting.

52. | ALDIS HOUSE & WETHERBY HALL, GREEN LANE, NORTHWOOD -

68153/APP/2017/793 (Agenda Item 10)

Proposed Change of Use of Aldis Hall (from C1 residential to D1 Pre-School
Nursery) with associated parking, access alterations and landscaping, and a
Change of Use of Wetherby House (from D1 Pre-School Nursery to C3
residential).

Officers introduced the application, which sought the proposed Changes of Use of Aldis
Hall to a Pre-School Nursery and Wetherby House to residential, and noted the
addendum which included an amendment to condition 5.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application on the grounds of traffic and parking
concerns. Members heard that the additional vehicles expected would put further strain
on traffic in the area, while the limited set-down and pick-up area on site would not help
the road cope with more vehicles, and would only lead to traffic issues as parents
queued to drop off children or parked illegally, as the proposed car park is 150 metres
from the site and it is not feasible that it will be used consistently by parents. The
petitioner also commented that the earlier and later opening times would not make a
major difference to traffic problems, as there is little demand for these additional hours
at nearby nurseries.

The agent for the application addressed the Committee and noted that the number of
pupils was capped and traffic management had strong proposed conditions in the hope
of addressing concerns of local residents. The earlier and later opening times were
proposed to suit the lifestyle of working parents, and it also leads to a large spread of
pick-ups and drop-offs to help with traffic management. Members heard that on-site
pick-up and drop-off was proposed only for children who were under two years old or
had a disability and the Green Lane car park has capacity for the other vehicles.

Responding to questions from Councillors, the agent confirmed that the proposal to
drop-off and pick-up children under two from the site was a late request, and that this
would affect 36 children on a daily basis. The agent also stated that there was no
available parking for staff members.

Members noted that two local Ward Councillors had both confirmed they objected to
the application.

The Council's Highways Officer confirmed that the proposal would lead to an extra 154
vehicle movements around the site and the trip generation figures estimated that the
busiest time would be between 8-9am when 18 vehicles would use the site. The
Committee expressed concern that with 36 pupils under the age of two, the on-site
parking would not be sufficient, as it is not so easy for parents to drop-off young pupils
quickly and this could cause queuing traffic on the road, in addition to illegal parking or
drop-offs.

Members commented that the current proposal regarding parking arrangements was
not sufficient for the number of vehicles that would be coming to the site, including staff

Page 4




members, and the proposed use of Green Lane Car Park was not deemed practical for
nursery-aged children. In turn, this could result in increased risk to pedestrian and
highway safety, especially due to the young age of many of the children. As such, the
Committee was concerned that the application would was contrary to planning policy
AMY (ii) regarding the free flow of traffic.

Therefore, a motion to refuse the application, subject to delegated authority to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement to confirm the final wording, was moved and
seconded. Upon being put to a vote, the motion was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused, subject to delegated authority to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement.

53.

10 JACKETS LANE, NORTHWOOD - 70543/APP/2017/1650 (Agenda ltem 11)

Redevelopment of the site to provide four detached single family dwellings with
associated car parking, access and landscaping.

Officers introduced the application, which sought the demolition of the existing
detached dwelling, and the erection of four single family dwellings, with one four-bed
detached dwelling.

Members commented that the applicant had worked hard to overcome previous
reasons for refusal, and this application was just about within policy. Therefore, the
officer's recommendation was proposed, seconded and unanimously agreed at a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to delegated authority to
the Head of Planning and Enforcement.

o4.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 12)
RESOLVED:
That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was agreed.

That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to
reveal the identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that
the authority proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue
of which requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the
public interest in withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in
disclosing it (exempt information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as
amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.24 pm, closed at 9.39 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250 693. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Pubilic.

Page 5




The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube
Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 6



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 52 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Two storey, 3-bed, detached dwelling and conversion of dwelling house into 1
x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed self-contained units involving single storey rear
extension with associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of
existing garage.

LBH Ref Nos: 4913/APP/2016/4358

Drawing Nos: Planning Statement
PLO1 E
PLO2 E
PLO3 E
PLO4 E
LTHO1 E
PLO5 E
Planning Statement Addendum
Arbtech Package Tree Survey
Arboricultural Method Statemen
Abtech TPP 01
Arbtech AIA 01

01-C

0s01
Date Plans Received: 01/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 01/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 16/12/2016 12/04/2017

16/12/2016
1. SUMMARY

The proposed development results in inappropriate development of garden land, resulting
in harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The current garden land
has a spaciousness and openness which makes an important contribution to local
character and the setting of the adjoining Grade Il Listed Building. There is insufficient
space to do significant boundary planting to mitigate the impact on the setting of the Grade
I listed Tudor lodge hotel which will appear more enclosed as a result of the proposal to
the detriment of the setting of the listed building, furthermore it is considered that existing
boundary trees within the grounds of the Tudor Lodge would be damaged or have to be
removed as result of the proposal exarcebating the impact. The loss of the garden land
will be detrimental to the visual amenity of the area and the wider street scene which is
characterised by development in landscaped grounds. The development would be
cramped and the layout, siting and scale of the new dwellling would not respect or
improve the existing pattern of buildings. There is also considered to be harm casued by
the amount of hardstanding proposed to the side and rear of the existing dwelling and
proposed attached dwelling in order to gain rear access and to rpovide rear parking.

Furthermore the provision of an additional dwelling to the rear with parking provision in
close proximity to the rear boundary with no. 54 would result in the occupants of that
dwelling to suffer an unacceptable loss of amenity by reason of the noise and disturbance.
As such the proposal would fail to comply with Policies BE21 and OE1 of the Hillingdon
UDP.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



The window arrangement to the rear dwelling prevents overlooking of houses in the Sigers
and the separartion distance is such that there would be no unacceptable loss of outlook
or daylight/sunlight to these properties. There are no concerns regarding the conversion
and sub-divison of the existing dwelling and rear in-fill extension, which is considered to
comply with all relevant planning policies.

The application is recommended for refusal.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development results in inappropriate development of garden land, resulting
in harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The current garden land
has a spaciousness and openness which makes an important contribution to local
character and the setting of the adjoining Grade Il Listed Building. There is insufficient
space to do significant boundary planting to mitigate the impact on the setting of the Grade
Il listed Tudor lodge hotel which will appear more enclosed as a result of the proposal to
the detriment of the setting of the listed building, furthermore it is considered that existing
boundary trees within the grounds of the Tudor Lodge would be damaged or have to be
removed as result of the proposal exarcebating the impact. The loss of the garden land
will be detrimental to the visual amenity of the area and the wider street scene which is
characterised by development in landscaped grounds. The development would be
cramped and the layout, siting and scale of the new dwellling would not respect or
improve the existing pattern of buildings. There is also considered to be harm casued by
the amount of hardstanding proposed to the side and rear of the existing dwelling and
proposed attached dwelling in order to gain rear access and to rpovide rear parking. The
proposals would therefore be contrary to Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (2016),
Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
and policies BE4, BE10, BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2015) and
the NPPF (March 2012).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of the close proximity of the proposed parking
spaces, would be detrimental to the residential amenity of the occupants of Number 54
Field End Road by reason of the noise, disturbance and potential light pollution. As such
the proposal would fail to comply with Policies BE19, BE21 and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north western side of Field End Road and is bordered
to the east and north by the Tudor Lodge Hotel and to the west and south by other
residential properties. It comprises a two storey semi detached property with a detached
garage to the side. Both this property and the adjoining property have been extended in a
similar but not identical way in the past, with a two storey side extensions. The application
site has a distinctive cat slide features between the two front gables, whilst the adjoining
property has a front projection. The neighbouring property also benefits from an additional
two storey rear extension. To the front there is a gravelled driveway, which can
accommodate at least 4 cars and to the rear there is a large L shaped rear garden.

The application site lies within the Developed Area as designated in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the erection of a single storey rear extension to the existing dwelling,
and then convert this to form two separate (1 x1 bed and 1 x 2 bed) units. It is also
proposed to erect a two storey, 3-bed, detached dwelling to the rear of the existing
property.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
4913/B/98/0295 52 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner
Erection of a two storey side extension to include garage and study

Decision: 01-04-1998  Approved

4913/PRC/2015/86 52 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner

Part demolition of existing building and construction of an additional dwelling within the site

Decision: 05-08-2015 OBJ

4913/PRC/2016/59 52 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner

Conversion and extension of the existing 4 bedroom dwelling into two dwellings and the
construction of a new 4 bedroom dwelling

Decision: 27-09-2016 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History
Various pre-application was given which highlighted a number of issues that would need to

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



be overcome, an overall objection was given. At the time pre-application advice was given
an arboricultural report had not been received and this has increased concerns regarding
harm caused by the rear dwelling, in particular on the setting of the Grade Il listed Tudor
Lodge Hotel.

Design guidance was given regarding the proposed conversion and extension of the
existing dwellinghouse.

4913/B/98/0295 - Erection of a two storey side extension to include garage and study.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

8 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 10 January 2017. A site notice
was also erected on the lamppost to the front expiring on 19 January 2017. There were 5 responses
to the consultation raising the following issues:

- Loss of privacy

- Loss of view from the neighbouring properties

- Increased noise, headlights, disturbance, air pollution and traffic generation from the vehicle
access, parking and use of the garden.

- Overdevelopment of the site

- Garden grabbing

- Adverse impact on the adjacent grade 2 listed building

- Overbearing

- Out of keeping with the area

- Security compromised as tradesmen, salesmen or visitors could stroll into what has always been
a private rear garden space

- Potential light pollution from security lights

- The proposed subdivision of the property would offer a cramped form of accommodation

A petition against the proposal was also submitted.

Eastcote Residents Association - Back yard developments should be resisted wherever possible.
The site is currently a well proportioned semi detached property adjacent to the Conservation Area
and a listed building and this proposed development would represent overdevelopment, both in
terms of size and occupancy. This application unacceptably alters the balance of the properties
turning this currently semi detached property into a terrace. This will detract from a current street
scene that should be retained to preserve the current ambience and character of the area. The
garden house will affect all those living in the Sigers, which are apartments and thus lose living in the
1st floor flats will be particularly affected by the loss of their current views across and towards Tudor
Lodge Hotel. Such vistas will be replaced by direct views into the proposed house. Loss of privacy to
adjacent occupiers and additional impact of the parking adjacent to the Sigers back garden amenity
area. Impact on the adjacent grade 2 listed building and both the Eastcote Park Estate and Eastcote
Village Conservation Areas.

Eastcote Village Conservation Panel - The property stands next to the Tudor Lodge Hotel and Grade
I listed building and near to both the Eastcote Park Estate and Eastcote Village Conservation Areas.
The road is spacious with mainly inter war Metroland semi detached houses. The exception being
the Forresters, which is a flatted development, set back from the road in very spacious well
landscaped grounds, therefore is not over dominant to the street scene. 52 Field End Road, is part
of a pair. Number 52 has been greatly extended. To change this building into two separate dwellings
will give the impression of terraced housing, which is out of character with this area. It is probable
that the 3 bedroom house will over shadow the amenity space of the maisonettes in The Sigers to

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



the rear/side of the application site. This proposal will appear overcrowded and detrimental to the
street scene in this sensitive part of Eastcote. We ask that this application be refused.

Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society - Overdevelopment of an attractive site with a
mature garden, which enhances the street landscape. It will result in a cramped appearance. This
form of garden development is against the Hilling Local Plan. The symmetry with the adjoining semi-
detached house will be lost. Although the site is not within the Conservation Area is very close. This
will be detrimental to the setting of the adjacent listed building. The proposal will ruin the character of
a pair of attractive 19th century Victorian cottages built in about 1888 and we request that it be
refused.

Internal Consultees
Access Officer - | deem there to be no accessibility issues raised by the proposal

Highways - This application utilises the existing crossover. Field End Road is a classified road with
the existing access point that allows vehicles to the enter and leave in forward gear. The
development would require at least 4 car parking spaces and 5 are provided. At least 1 should be EV
charging active and 1 space EV charging passive and this should be conditioned. There will be
additional traffic movements compared to the existing but this is not seen as significant. There are
no plans showing secure covered cycle parking or refuse/recycling facilities but this can be
conditioned. On this basis | have no significant concerns in terms of highways issues.

Conservation and Urban Design - The site is not within a conservation area, nor an area that is
sensitive in terms of its archaeology, however to the immediate north -east of the Tudor Lodge Hotel,
which s grade Il listed and an early timber framed building. Works therefore have potential to impact
on the setting of this building. The principle elevation of the historic hotel building is currently seen
against a backdrop of mainly 2 storey domestic buildings. The addition of an extra house as
proposed will further enclose the boundary when viewed from the street and car park. The existing
trees along the boundary provide partial screening of views of the new building from within the hotel
car park area. However it must be noted that these trees do not form part of the development site
and it is unclear as to how their retention can be secured as part of this development.

Officer comment: The Conservation Officer has raised no criticism of the conversion works as
these reflect pre-application advice given on this aspect of the proposal.

Trees/Landscaping - There are no trees or other landscape features of merit on the site, the nearest
trees are the off site trees along the side boundary within the grounds of the hotel. If the application is
recommended for approval, a landscape condition should be imposed in order to safeguard the
trees and enhance the character and appearance of the area. No objection.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Concern has been raised with regard to garden grabbing contrary to the NPPF, which
identifies Local Authorities should consider the case for setting out policies to resist
inappropriate development of residential gardens.

There is not an in principle objection to conversion of the existing dwelling, nor the rear in-fill
extension. It is considered that this has been very sensitively proposed with design
characteristics and detailing which reflect that of the Victorian architecture. There is not
considered to be any reason why the impression of terraced housing would apply or be
unacceptable in this instance (a view shared by the Council's Conservation Officer). A side
entry door is added, but this in itself is not so harmful or out of charcater that it could be
refused.

It is the rear dwelling where policy conflicts are considered to apply, both regarding the loss

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



of garden land in this case and its impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and the setting of the Grade Il Listed Tudor Lodge Hotel. The parcel of
land does provide a break between the development of the Sigers and the grounds of the
Tudor Lodge Hotel.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the new development takes into account
local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Although the existing dwelling has considerable character and is late Victorian it is not a
statutory listed or locally listed building.

Concern has been raised with regard to the potential impact on the Conservation Areas of
Eastcote Village and Eastcote Park, which sit adjacent to one another to the north of the
application site. BE4 advises that development on the fringes of Conservation Areas will be
expected to preserve or enhance those features which contribute to their special
architectural and visual qualities. Whilst noting these concerns given the distance of
separation of approximately 112 m and 130 m respectively, and the intervening built form,
it is not thought that the application site could be considered as within the fringe and is
therefore impact on these Conservation Areas is not considered to be relevant to this
proposal.

Concerns have also been raised over the detrimental impact on Tudor Lodge a grade Il
Listed Building adjacent to the application site by objectors, this concern is considered to
be of far more relevance. Policy BE10 advises that consent will not normally be granted for
proposals which are considered to be detrimental to the setting of a listed building.

The side boundary of the application site is situated approximately 27m to the south west of
the listed building and separated by the car parking area serving the hotel.

Part of the character of the hotel is its setting in spacious landscaped grounds. Many
surrounding dwellings have glimpsed views of the hotel and its grounds. The enclosure of
the hotel, even by a building some 30m distance is a matter of concern and would affect
the setting of the listed building, in particular if such a building cannot be comprehensively
screened or results in the loss of existing boundary trees in the grounds of the listed
building (irrespective of the individual value of boundary trees within the curtliage of the
listed hotel its boundary trees have substantial collective value).

The proposed alterations to the existing dwelling include the removal of the linked single
storey garage to the side; the repositioning of the main entrance door from the side of the
central single storey element to the front, facing the road; the blocking up of a small first
floor side window and the erection of a single storey extension to the rear. The garage is a
modern construction of no particular architectural merit. The proposed single storey rear
extension would sit between and level with the existing two storey rear projection and the
boundary with no. 54. This extension and the proposed alterations are modest in scale and
it is not considered they would impact on the setting of the listed building.

The existing property benefits from an extensive L shaped rear garden and the proposal

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



also includes the erection of a detached two storey dwelling to the rear. This is situated
within the northern corner, set back a minimum of 1 m from the boundary and adjacent to
the two storey annex building of Tudor Lodge. The Conservation Officer has advised that
the principle elevation of the historic hotel building is currently seen against a backdrop of
mainly 2 storey domestic buildings. The addition of an extra house as proposed will further
enclose the boundary when viewed from the street and car park.

There is insufficient space to do significant boundary planting to mitigate the impact on the
setting of the Grade Il listed Tudor lodge hotel which will appear more enclosed as a result
of the proposed rear dwelling to the detriment of the setting of the listed building,
furthermore it is considered that existing boundary trees within the grounds of the Tudor
Lodge would be damaged or have to be removed as result of the proposal exarcebating the
impact. As such the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy BE10 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) resist any development which would fail to harmonise with the existing
street scene or would fail to safeguard the design of existing and adjoining sites. Policy
BE19 also seeks to ensure that new development will compliment or improve the character
of the area. The NPPF notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

As previously identified in section 7.03 the alterations to the existing dwelling to facilitate the
subdivision into two properties are relatively minor and would not significantly alters its
appearance when viewed from within the street scene. The single storey rear extension in-
fills a gap between the existing two storey rear projection and the existing single storey
element of no. 54. It measures 5.9 m in width, 3.3 m in depth and has a flat roof of 3 m in
height. This is a modest extension which would comply with the requirements of HDAS
guidance and would not be out of keeping with the character and appearance of the
existing dwelling or the wider area.

The proposed REAR dwelling measures 7.8 m in width and 10.8 m in depth and has been
designed to complement the existing dwellings to the front, with a pitched gable ended roof
and additional front facing gable projection and a high steeply sloping roof form over the
single storey front projection reflecting the style of the cat slide detail to the front of the
existing dwellings. At a height of 7 m the propose dwelling is slightly higher that the host
property which stands at 6.85 m.

The current garden land has a spaciousness and openness which makes an important
contribution to local character and the setting of the adjoining Grade Il Listed Building. The
loss of the garden land will be detrimental to the visual amenity of the area and the wider
street scene which is characterised by development in landscaped grounds. The
development would appear in this context to be cramped and the layout, siting and scale of

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



the new dwellling would not respect or improve the existing pattern of buildings. There is
also considered to be harm caused by the amount of hardstanding proposed to the side
and rear of the existing dwelling and proposed in order to gain rear access and to provide
rear parking.

It is therefore considered that the proposed rear dwelling would conflict with policy BE1
which seeks to resist inappropriate development of gardens and green sapces that erode
the character of suburban areas.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) state that new buildings should not result in the loss of sunlight or loss of
residential amenity. Policy BE20 states "buildings should be laid out so that adequate
daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and between them and the amenities of existing
houses are safeguarded".

Policy BE22 states "planning permission will not be granted for new buildings or extensions
which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of
residential amenity".

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: New Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential
developments and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight. The
daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be adequately protected.
Where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance
should be maintained to overcome possible over-domination.

The proposed single storey extension to the existing dwelling does not project beyond the
rear building line of the adjoining property no. 54 and is set well back from the other
boundaries. It complies with the requirements of HDAS: Residential Extensions and it is not
considered that this element of the proposal would significantly impact on the amenity of
the neighbouring property.

The proposed new dwelling to the rear is situated in the northern corner of the rear garden
set back 1m from the side boundaries and approximately 3.5m from the side elevation of
the adjacent hotel building. It has been orientated to face the new driveway and the highway
beyond. The principle windows to most of the rooms however face south west over the
proposed garden area. The properties on The Sigers beyond are situated approximately
21m away. Therefore it is not considered that a new dwelling would result in the loss of
privacy to any of these properties. One first floor bedroom faces the hotel car park
adjacent, whilst the rear elevation has two windows facing the annex. These windows
would serve a bathroom and a secondary window to the kitchen and could be conditioned
to be obscure glazed. To the front there is one upper windows facing the rear of nos. 52
and 54 approximately 15 m away. This window serves the stairs and landing and as such
could also be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8 m.

Concerns have been made with regard to the potential increase in noise from use of the
garden and additional parking to the rear. This is an existing garden area that is used by the
occupiers of no. 52. It is also noted that the proposal is situated immediately adjacent to a
car park in use in association with the existing hotel. However the intensification of use,
particularly with the addition of vehicle movements to the rear and the provision of two
parking spaces against the boundary fence to the rear of no. 54, is considered to be
detrimental to the occupiers of that property by virtue of increased noise and potential light
pollution.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

As such it is considered that the proposal is an un-neighbourly form of development and
complies with the requirements of Policies BE20, BE21 & BE24 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The proposed floor spaces for
the 1 bed, 2 bed and 3 bed properties are 58.7 sqm; 88.25 sgm and 129.95 sgm
respectively, in excess of the minimum requirements and therefore are considered
acceptable.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9.

The proposal provides private rear gardens of 40sgm; 60.8 sqm and 90sgm for the 1 bed ,
2 bed and 3 bed properties in accordance with the Council's adopted standard. The
proposal therefore complies with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by the proposed
development is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a provision of 2 spaces
per dwelling.

The proposed dwellings are served by a total of five parking spaces, two each for the larger
dwellings and one for the 1 bed property, in line with adopted standards. The Highway
Officer has advised that the proposal would be acceptable and as such would comply with
the requirements of policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
Unitary Development Plan Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

These issues are considered in other sections of the report.
Disabled access

The Access Officer has advised there are no accessibility issues raised by the proposals.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Tree Survey and Arboricultural Method Statement has assessed the impact of the
development on nearby trees and one elder (C grade) will be felled and five other trees and

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

shrubs will have pre-emptive tree surgery. The method statement specifies that the project
will be monitored/supervised by the project arboriculturalist. The tree survey identifies it is
likely that extensive root systems from trees within the grounds of the listed building stretch
into the rear garden of 52 Field End Road, this raises serious concerns regarding the long
term protection and retention of these trees should the rear dwelling be erected.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The issue of the loss of a 'view' from a property is not a material planning consideration as
there is no right to a view. The other issues raised have been addressed appropriately in
the report.

Planning Obligations

The proposal would not necessitate the provision of planning obligations, however based
on the information before officers at this stage, it would be liable for payments under the
Community Infrastructure Levy.

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise
with the existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure that new
development within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and the
character of the area. Policy BE24 states that the proposals should protect the privacy of
the occupiers and their neighbours.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



The proposal is not considered have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site
or the surrounding area and would provide a satisfactory level of residential amenity to
future occupiers. However the provision of an additional dwelling to the rear would result in
an unacceptable loss of amenity tot he occupiers of the adjacent property.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

52 Field End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4913/APP/2016/4358 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 20 August 2017

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 197 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER
Development: Installation of roller shutter.

LBH Ref Nos: 22149/APP/2017/2101

Drawing Nos: EFC-P1
EFC-1250 SO1
EFC-50 S01
Date Plans Received: 08/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 03/07/2017
1. SUMMARY

The planning application was received on 08 June 2017 following previous Enforcement
Action and is classified as retrospective since the development is already implemented.
The development, subject of this report has caused a considerable level of public reaction,
and has resulted in the registering of an e-petition against the development in question,
the Local Planning Authority has received 50 objections received (at the time of drafting
this report). Some letters of support were also received by the LPA.

It is considered that the development is an unwelcome addition which adds to visual
clutter in the street-scene. It is detrimental to the setting of the adjacent locally listed
buildings, and to the character of the adjacent conservation area and as such the
development fails to accord with Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1
- Strategic Policies (November 2012), and Policies AM8, BE4, BE13, BE15, BE18 BE19,
BE27, BE28 and BE29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (November 2012).

NB This list of policies is greater than that quoted in the Enforcement Notice as a result of
reflecting on issues raised in the public consultation.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The roller shutters are considered to be a visual clutter detrimental to the fabric of the
building and the wider street scene, its size, bulk, design and palette of colours neither
preserve nor enhance this prominent corner plot adjacent to the Morford Way
Conservation Area contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies AM8, BE4, BE13, BE15, BE18, BE19,
BE27, BE28 and BE29 of the Adopted Hillingdon Local Plan : Part 2 Saved Policies
(November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and
location

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

BE29 Advertisement displays on business premises

DAS-SF Shopfronts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 2.15 (2016) Town Centres

LPP 4.7 (2016) Retail and town centre development

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

NPPF2 NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

PPG19 Outdoor Advertisement Control

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

3. CONSIDERATIONS

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



3.1 Site and Locality

The subject property is a ground floor A1 retail unit located at the junction with North View
Road (which is entirely residential) and Field End Road, Eastcote. The site is situated in a
busy shopping parade, adjacent to the Morford Way Conservation Area. The parade and
site form part of the Secondary Shopping Area of Eastcote Minor Town Centre.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application is retrospective, the proposed scheme is described as being for an
installation of roller shutters to an external shopping trolley area and a storage for empty
boxes.

The application proposal involves the installation of bright orange aluminium structures with
perforated roller shutters of 2. 595 m in height, 1.5 m in depth and 11.8 m in width with a
flat roof have been erected on the main shop windows that previously existed. The
proposal extends the South-Eastern elevation of the application property facing North View
Road, resulting in creating an enclosed and extended shop floor space that is detrimental
to the street-scene. The roller shutters have been erected in a manner that adds to visual
clutter. The proposal lacks respect for the character of the local area and the adjacent
Morford Way Conservation Area.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

22149/C/89/3640 197 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner

Installation of partial internally illuminated sign

Decision: 26-04-1990 Approved

22149/F/93/3078 197 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner

Installation of internally illuminated elevational signage

Decision: 27-08-1993  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning Application 22149/F/93/3079 for the installation of internally illuminated elevation
signage.

Planning Application 22149/C/89/3640 for the installation of partial internally illuminated
signage.

The site was previously used as a Pet Care Shop with rather simple corner shopfront with
fully glazed shop windows in keeping with a number of the shop frontages within the
immediate vicinity of the site. Historically there was a wooden fence with a dwarf wall on
the South-Eastern side of property.

Enforcement Notices were authorised to be issued by the North Planning Committee on
13 July 2017.

Enforcement Notice Ref. HS/ENF/11919(A) relating to the unauthorised display of

advertisement signs was served on 28 July 2017. This Enforcement Notice takes effect on
28 August 2017 with a time for compliance of one (1) calendar month.

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



Enforcement Notice Ref. HS/ENF/11919(B) relating to the installation of roller shutters and
a roller shutter storage extension at the side of the building without planning permission
was served on 28 July 2017. This Enforcement Notice takes effect on 28 August 2017 with
a time for compliance of one (1) calendar month.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.HEA

(2012) Built Environment
(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:
LDF-AH

AM8

BE4

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE19
BE26
BE27
BE28
BE29

DAS-SF

LPP 2.15
LPP 4.7
LPP 7.8
NPPF12
NPPF2
NPPF7
PPG19

S12
5.

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings
Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location
Shop fronts - design and materials

Advertisement displays on business premises

Shopfronts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Town Centres

(2016) Retail and town centre development

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

NPPF - Requiring good design

Outdoor Advertisement Control

Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1

Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

10 neighbouring occupiers along with the Chiropractic Clinic and Barclays Bank Plc were consulted
by letter.

Eastcote Residents Association were consulted by letter.

Eastcote Village Conservation Panel and Lawrence Rand Estate Agents were consulted by
letter/email.

50 letters of objection were received by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). A summary of objectors
comments are set out as follows:

The application proposal has already been completed without planning consent. The proposal has
resulted in a development that is not in keeping with the local character of the area.

The application scheme is an alien feature in the street scene, it has an adverse impact upon the
adjacent conservation area. The proposal extends retail floor space onto the public footpath, it
impedes the free flow of pedestrian traffic, and is a hazard.

Two letters of support had no objection to the retail use, but objected to the use of bright orange
colours on the erected shutters.

Eastcote Conversation Panel & Eastcote Resident's Association:

The submitted drawing does not bear any resemblance to the construction already in situ which
obliterates the decorative brickwork; they ask application to be classed as a retrospective and
consider this application as one which has caused a great public outcry against despoiling of a
'metroland' building and ask application to be refused

Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society:

The attached photographs and drawings are very misleading as they bear no resemblance to the
actual roller shutters, which have been in place already for some weeks. The roller shutters which
have been installed cover a large area and look very obtrusive as they are bright orange. They are
totally out of keeping with all the surrounding buildings.

Internal Consultees
Transport Officer:

This application is for the installation of roller shutters on a shop at 197 Field End Road Eastcote.
The shop is located on the corner of Field End Road and North View.

The shop is located at a traffic signal junction with pedestrian phases that commence adjacent to
the development proposals. The site is adjacent to waiting and loading restrictions on North View.

The footpath adjacent to the site is narrow (approximately 1.8 m) for a busy site close to the traffic

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



signals. It would appear that the application for a roller shutter is retrospective as the facility is
already operational with the applicant selling fruit and vegetables from the site. There is instances
where goods are stored on the pavement which restricts pedestrian movement even further.

The roller shutter has been built right up to the applicant's boundary and trading is taking place on or
very close to the boundary of the applicant's land and the footpath.

| am concerned that this application interferes with the safe operation of the footpath. By having
goods for sale on the boundary of the applicant's land customers are obstructing the free flow of
pedestrians which results in pedestrians being forced into the road. On the basis of the above
comments | suggest you refuse this application on pedestrian safety grounds.

Conservation and Design Officer:

The proposal would be considered in principle unacceptable. The roller structure has been installed
on site prior to the determination of the application. As existing the shutter and structure itself would
be considered an incongruous, highly intrusive addition to the building. It would detract from the
established local distinctiveness of Eastcote's main shopping core. The addition it has also hidden
the existing pilaster features along this elevation of the building. The vivid nature of the shuttering and
use of shop as existing fails to safely and aesthetically interact with the surrounding environment and
the shop's threshold, particularly in regards to the structure directly abutting the footpath.

The clutter of signage along the side of the building would cause detrimental harm to the amenity of
the surrounding area and are not considered in keeping with the streetscene. Furthermore due to the
number of signs, the location and scale of the signage it may also require further advertisement
consent. On an additional note there are concerns regarding the removal of the entire shopfront
(glazing), which has been replaced with orange shutters.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Minor alterations to shop fronts would not create adverse impact nor visual clutter.
However the erection of roller shutters designed for use on warehouse and industrial
buildings is not suitable development in a high street. A high street,that has developed over
time with respect for the character of the local area, has now a detrimental feature, that
neither respects the human scale of the parade of shops, its uniformity and close proximity
to the adjacent conservation area. The shutters have an agricultural feel and are alien in the
street-scene. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies AM8, BE4, BE13,
BE15 and BE28 of the Adopted Hillingdon Local Plan : Part 2 Saved Policies (November
2012).

The application scheme impedes the free flow of pedestrian traffic and safety and would be
a hazard, contrary to Policies BE18 and BE19 of the local plan.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application proposal fails to respect the character of the local area, and the listed
heritage assets in close proximity to the development. The scheme is incongruous and
unacceptable. The proposal is not in keeping with Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The application site is located in close proximity to Morford Way Conservation Area along a
busy junction of Field End Road, North View and ElIm Avenue. The scheme is a discordant
feature in this modest parade, that has a coherent form and structure.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that new developments should retain or enhance the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas and those features which contribute to the special architectural
qualities. The retrospective application fails to comply with the advice contained in Policy
BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two.

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fails to
harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) require alterations and extensions to
harmonise with the scale, form, architectural composition and proportions of the original
building. Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas
compliments or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The submitted retrospective scheme is an unacceptable development, that created visual
clutter and presents a hazard to pedestrian safety.

The shutters have a sharp urban edge in an area, that has a sense of openness.
Impact on neighbours

The impact has been sited in the body of the Officers Report.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The observations of the Highways Officer cannot be ignored, the scheme is an
unacceptable hazard to pedestrian safety and movement. The proposal does not comply
with Policy BE18 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two.

Urban design, access and security

Set out in the body of the Officers Report.
Disabled access

None.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Set out in summary.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

The Enforcement Notices were issued against the applicant on 17 July 2017:

First Enforcement Notice was issued relating to the unauthorised display of advertisement
signs on the front and side elevation of subject property.

Second Enforcement Notice concerns the installation of roller shutters and a roller shutter
storage extension at the side of the building without planning permission.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It is concluded that the proposed development fails to accord with Policies BE1 and HE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), and Policies AM8,
BE4, BE13, BE15, BE18, BE19, BE27, BE28 and BE29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
(November 2012), as such it is recommended for a refusal

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Maria Tomalova Telephone No: 01895250320

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



_—

Car Park

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

197 Field End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
22149/APP/2017/2101 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 30 August 2017

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 88 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: The erection of a 3-storey building to provide 9no self contained units (7 x 2-
bed and 2 x 1-bed) with associated parking, cycle and amenity space
following the demolition of existing detached dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 29164/APP/2016/4622

Drawing Nos: 1959-2G
1959-3E
Arboricultural Report
Heritage Impact Assessment
Design and Access Statement Rev A
Location Plan
1959-3 B
16064_01
Location Plan
1959-4 E

Date Plans Received: 22/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2017 30/06/2017
2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission subject to conditions.

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1959-2G, 1959-3E,
16064_01, 1959-4 E; 1959.1, Heritage Impact Assessment (March 2017), Arboricultural
Report and Design & Access Statement Rev A, and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details and sample of all materials and external
surfaces, including
and all proposed windows and doors (including rooflights), roof tiles, guttering and down

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



pipes; render finish, any exposed brick work and mock timber detailing (RAL colours
would need to be included), have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs' . Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including installation of 1 electric charging points)

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(2015).

6 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it follows the strategy set out in the Flood Risk
Statement dated October 2013 by Water Environment and Updated Structural report by
Elliot Wood September 2013 and Site Investigation produced by GEA dated June 2013
and incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in
Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume;

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated);

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime, including
appropriate details of inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii. Where not an individual landowner, provide details of the body or bodies legally
responsible for the implementation of the management and maintenance plan.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment;
ii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

iii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON:

To ensure that surface water run-off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (July 2011) and Planning Policy Statement 25. To be handled as close to
its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London
Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use
and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the first use of the property for the development hereby permitted, level or ramped
access shall be provided to and into the properties, designed in accordance with technical
measurements and tolerances specified by Part M to the Building Regulations 2000 (2004
edition), and shall be retained in perpetuity.

REASON

To ensure adequate access for all, in accordance with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan
(2016), is achieved and maintained, and to ensure an appropriate standard of accessibility
in accordance with the Building Regulations.

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to commencement of development a historic buildings record of the parts of the
building subject of this application shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This should be to a Level 2 standard in terms of the areas to be
covered as defined by Historic England.

REASON

In the interests of recording the historic interest of the building with the provisions of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London
Plan (2016).

9 RES17 Sound Insulation

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the development
is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so
long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with policy
OES5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London
Plan (2016) Policy 7.15.

10 HO5 No additional windows or doors

No additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed in the walls or roof
slopes of the development hereby approved facing North-East and South-West.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

1 HOG6 Obscure Glazing

The window(s) facing North-East and South-West shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished
floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

12 COM®6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

13 COM31 Secured by Design

The building shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

14 RES20 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently
retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a
minimum of 4.8 m long by 3.6 m wide, or at least 3.0 m wide where two adjacent bays
may share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016)

15 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils
for landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. All imported soils shall
be tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when
using this condition.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

16 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

17 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

H4 Mix of housing units

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

4 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

5 115

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

6 I25A The Party Wall etc. Act 1996
On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1)  carry out work to an existing party wall;
2)  build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control will
assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

7 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

88 Long Lane is located on the North Western side of Long Lane, some 100 m to the North
East of its junction with Swakeleys Drive and comprises an attractive inter-war detached
house, set back from the road on a large plot with a deep rear garden. The subject dwelling
along with the maijority of the adjoining detached houses to the South West (Nos. 90 to 98
Long Lane) are of individual design and have a spacious character. The dwellings are set
well back from the road, in an informal setting with a staggered relationship to the road
frontage. To the North, the site is adjoined by the Cardinal Hume Campus of the Douay
Martyrs School (which contains a locally listed building). To the rear of the application
property are the rear gardens of residential properties on surrounding roads.The Dormy
House adjoins the rear boundary of the application property.

The views to the rear of the subject property form part of an established residential area,
characterised by a spacious, verdant character with properties set well back from the road
frontage and surrounded by well established gardens and road frontages that contain many
mature trees.

The character of the area has gained recognition thorough its inclusion within the Ickenham
Village Conservation Area. The curtilage of the adjoining house at the rear (Dormy House)
and part of the end of the rear garden of the adjoining house (No. 90 Long Lane) are also
covered by Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs 438 and 482a refer).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the exisiting building and the erection of
a three storey building to provide 9 flats. The proposed flats would be arranged over three
floors and would comprise the following:

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



Flat A 2bed/4 persons 69 SQ.M
Flat B 2 bed/4 persons 69 SQ.M
Flat C1 bed/2persons 60 SQ.M
Flat D 1 bed/2 persons 60 SQ.M
Flat E 2 bed/4 persons 72 SQ.M
Flat F 2 bed/4 persons 72 SQ.M
Flat G 2 bed/4 persons 111 SQ.M
Flat H 2 bed/4 persons 93 SQ.M
Flat J 2 bed/4 persons 88 SQ.M

9 Parking spaces would be provided to the front of the property and cycle and bin storage
would also be provided. 18 cycle parking spaces are proposed.

During the course of the application the following amendments have been made:

-Side dormer windows have been changed to velux windows.
-Velux windows to flats E anf F have been changed to dormers.
-Velux windows have been lowered to improve outlook.
-Conservation style velux windows are proposed.

-Defensive planting has been added to ground floor rear units.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
29164/80/1666 05-Jun Hills Lane Northwood
Householder dev. (small extension,garage etc) (P)

Decision: 10-10-1980 Approved

Comment on Planning History

The previous application was dismissed at appeal due to the scale of the proposal. The
appeal scheme was of a vastly greater scale than the current proposal. The appeal
scheme involved 4 plots and 48m long facade. It is considered that very limited weight can
be attributed to the appeal decision as it relates to a completely different scale of
development.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

H4 Mix of housing units

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 8th February 2017

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
4no objections were received to the application which are summarised below:

-the proposal is large and bulky;

-the proposal would result in a loss of privacy;

-the proposal is detrimental to the streetscene;

-the proposal would result in a loss of community;

-the proposal is considered to be a cramped form of development; and
-there are too many flatted developments in the vicinity.

Ickenham Residents Association raised the following concerns:

- this proposal appears to be 3 times the depth of the existing house footprint, even though it has
been presented with a very pleasant frontal design;

- object in PRINCIPLE to such a project for a flatted development, because, as our recent
experience in Swakeleys Road has shown, it may set a precedent in this part of Long Lane in the
Ickenham Village Conservation Area and would seriously affect the street scene;

- the Inspector in his 'reason for refusal' of Signature Housing on this site gave as his main reasons
for refusal as follows: - the effect of the proposed development on: the character and appearance of
the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and the surrounding residential area; and, on the living
conditions of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, with particular reference to outlook, privacy

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



and noise and disturbance; and

- the introduction of a building of such bulk and massing, may constitute an overdevelopment of the
site and be detrimental to the neighbouring residential property;

- the additional cars for the residents of the proposed 9 flats would have substantial consequences
on traffic entering and exiting the site onto a bend in the heavily utilized Long Lane, Many conclusions
of the Appeal Decision APP/R5510/W/15/3028171 - SIGNATURE SENIOR LIFESTYLE -
52129/APP/2014/2996 - dated 27.10.15 would relate to individual applications for flatted
developments in this area of Ickenham.

Historic England

This application should be determined in accordance with national and local policy guidance.

Internal Consultees
Access Officer

The Access Officer has requested a condition to ensure the building has level access.
Officer comment: An appropriately worded condition is proposed.
Conservation and Design (Summary of Comments):

The existing building is an attractive inter-war detached dwelling,located within the Ickenham Village
Conservation Area, and adjacent to the Douay Martyrs School, Cardinal Hume Campus which
includes a Locally Listed building. The Ickenham area is characterised by spacious and maturely
landscaped residential developments. The frontage to Long Lane comprises of individually designed
dwellings, which positively contribute to the appearance of the street scene. Whilst buildings vary in
architectural style and design, Ickenham in general, particularly the area surrounding the site,
comprises of detached and semi-detached dwellings appropriately positioned on large plots with
long rear gardens. Buildings along Long Lane, including no.88, are mostly set back from the road
behind green verges and mature front gardens, creating a spacious character and appearance to
the area. The existing site comprises of a large front and rear garden, which is well characterised
with mature trees and shrubs. Vegetation along the frontage provides natural, soft screening from
the street scene. The property is proportionately sized and appropriately situated within the plot. The
existing building is characterised by a steeply pitched gable roof with two small dormers to the front,
central projecting gable, finished with clad timber boarding and decorative timber framing to the
principal facade of the building. It is one and a half storeys in height and contributes positively to the
overall character and appearance of the Conservation Area and street scene of Long Lane. Any
proposed development would need to aim to preserve and enhance the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area, as well as respond to local distinctiveness.

It is important that any new development becomes a positive asset within the area's townscape and
contributes to the unique and defined streetscape of Long Lane. It is therefore important that the
proposed development does not become an overly dominant structure and detract from the existing
street scape. The general appearance and style of the principal elevation would reflect and respond
to the existing dwelling on the site and would relate to the character and

appearance of the Conservation Area.

There would be limited views of the proposed development from the streetscene. The step in of the
rear projecting element from the side would lessen the impact of the building's overall scale.

The main element of the proposed building facing towards to the main road aims to follow the basic
roof form of the existing dwelling at a bigger scale, comprising of a steeply pitched gable roof form

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



with a proportionately designed projecting gable to the front. The rear projecting element comprises
of a gambrel roof form. Whilst it would be considered an Arts and Crafts element, the rear projecting
element would project a considerable distance into the site.

Trees are a positive contributor within any environments and within Conservation Areas they benefit
from additional protection. It is duly noted that the prominent and positively contributing oak tree
along the front boundary of the property would be retained. It is inherently important that this tree is
well safeguarded during any works on the site. Impact to other trees within the vicinity of the site
would need to be duly avoided.

Should the application be approved the following conditions would need to be added.

- Building recording condition up to level 2 (in accordance to Historic England's guidance)

- Prior to the commencement of relevant works, details and samples of all proposed windows and
doors (including rooflights)

- Prior to the commencement of relevant works, details and samples of proposed external finishes
and materials, including; roof tiles, guttering and down pipes; render finish, any exposed brick work
and mock timber detailing (RAL colours would need to be included).

Highways

This application is for the construction of a block of flats on Long Lane Ickenham. Long Lane (B466)
is a classified road on the Council road network. This route is already subject to peak period delays.
The site has a PTAL of 2 (poor) which suggests there will be a reliance on private cars for trip
making to and from the site. The plans show car parking and that would have 20% active (2) and
20% passive EVCP (conditioned). There are secure covered cycle parking spaces (9) shown on the
plans along with refuse/recycling bins. There is car parking stress on Long Lane under the current
arrangements. On the basis of the above comments and those made previously the application
does not cause significant highway concerns .

All the units are 2 and 1 bedroom The parking provision complies with Standards. There will be an
intensification of use of the access. The existing access provides a single lane. Whilst the opening
in the front boundary wall cannot be widened to the desired width owing to the proximity of a large
tree and its roots, the long cross over outside should be widened to 4.1 m to provide two way
access to avoid vehicles entering the site having to wait on a busy road. Subject to amended cross
over or a Condition requiring details of a widened cross over no objections would be raised on
highway grounds.

Officer comment: Condition 14 (traffic arrangements) would secure the wider crossover.

Trees

The Arboricultural Report by Tim Moya Associates and email from Charles McCorkell addresses the
concerns regarding the proximity of the building to the off-site Beech tree, subject to a building
method employing piled foundations and the supervision / monitoring of tree protection measures by

the arboricultural consultant.

No objection subject to conditions COMS (to include the provision of on -site supervision / monitoring
by the tree consultant), RES9 (parts 1,2,4,5 and 6) and RES10.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



7.01 The principle of the development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

Paragraph 3.3 of the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential
Layout notes that the redevelopment of more than 10% of properties on a residential street
is unlikely to be acceptable. Planning history in relation to this street and Council Tax
records have been analysed as part of the assessment of this application. There are no
other properties along Long Lane that are used as flats. It is therefore considered that the
proposal that optimises the site to provide additional residential accommodation is
acceptable in principle subject to all other material considerations being considered
acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2 (poor). The London Plan
(2016) range for sites with a PTAL of 2 to 3 in an urban area is 35-65 units per hectare.
Based on a total site area the site would have an appropriate residential density.

The density matrix, however has limited value when judged against a small scale
development such as that proposed with this submission. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Section 72 of the (Planning Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 states the
statutory duty of Local Planning Authorities in regard to development affecting conservation
areas 'special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area.’

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in
orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

The proposed development site falls within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. Policy
HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies Policies states that the
Council will conserve and enhance BE4 of the , states that new development within or on
the fringes of conservation areas, will be expected to preserve or enhance those features
which contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves
the amenity and character of the area.

The applicant has submitted a Heritage Assessment in support of their application which
states the following "the current house reflects the type of early 20th century 'Metroland'
development, made up of individually designed, detached houses, set in large gardens with
mature plantings, that characterises the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. While the
house itself is of limited interest, its size, position and mature plantings contribute to the
surrounding streetscape. Therefore, any negative impact caused by the redevelopment of
the site should be mitigated by sensitive design, which is addressed inasmuch as the
architectural form of the proposed development is clearly informed by the local vernacular,
and the preservation of mature trees and shrubs".

The proposed development, makes provision for 9 self contained flats and is designed to
read as a single dwelling set on a generous plot that reflect the existing dwelling on the site
and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The proposed development
would be set within a well landscaped setting and partially screened by a large mature oak
tree. The scheme would retain generous spaces between the properties as such the
proposal is not considered to cause any harm to the Ickenham Village Conservation Area.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Covered above in 'impact on Conservation Area'.
Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that uses that become detrimental to the amenity of the adjoining occupiers or
surrounding area will not be approved.

The proposed development would not involve any additions or extensions and thus would
not breach the 45-degree line from neighbouring dwellings. The proposed development
would not extend beyond the rear building line of the adjoining property to the South-West.
The neighbouring property to the North-East is a secondary school, and has buildings that
extend beyond the rear building line of the proposed development. Given the position of the
dwelling the proposed development would not breach the 45-degree line. Windows are
proposed on the side elevations, however they are proposed to be obscurely glazed and
fixed shut about 1.7M. This has been duly conditioned. The proposed balconies would have
a minimal projection, and given the separation distances between the properties of at least
21m, they would not cause any undue overlooking.

The proposed development would not cause any undue visual intrusion, loss of daylight,
loss of sunlight or overlooking by virtue of the siting and massing. The scheme is
considered aceptable and would not constitute an un-neighbourly form of development in
compliance with Policies BE20, BE21, BE24 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Living conditions for future occupiers

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

The London Plan Housing SPG (2016) sets out the minimum internal floor spaces required
for developments in order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for existing
and future occupants. The proposed dwellings provide adequate floorspace in accordance
with the requirements of the London Plan and therefore is considered acceptable. All
bedrooms exceed the minimum area requirements.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9.

The development provides adequate private amenity space for each of the units being
provided. The amenity space provides 820 sq.m of communal amenity space. In addition
patio areas and balconies are provided at the rear. This is in excess of minimum amenity
space standards and therefore the development accords with the Council's adopted
standard. The proposal therefore complies with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

9 parking spaces have been provided at the front of the building, which complies with policy
standards and no objections are raised in terms of highway safety. Details of the parking
arrangements and other traffic details in particular the width of the crossover) have been
sought by way of a pre-commencement condition.

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to retain landscape features which contribute to the character of local areas.
Paragraph 11.2 of HDAS states that where parking layouts are altered as part of an
extension to a property, at least 25% of the front garden should be retained in soft
landscaping. Adequate soft landscaping has been provided.

Urban design, access and security

Secured by Design is now covered by Part Q of the Building Regulations.
Disabled access

Secured by Design is now covered by Part M of the Building Regulations.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 seeks to protect and retain trees and landscaping in new development. There
is a large, mature Oak situated within the front garden and a large mature Beech tree
situated on third party land to the East. The Tree Officer has identified that these trees are
attractive landscape features that significantly contribute to the amenity and arboreal
character of the area. The submitted Arboricultural Report and email addresses earlier
concerns regarding the proximity of the building to the off-site Beech tree. Any previous
objections from the Tree Officer have now been withdrawn and it is considered that
existing trees can be retained through the use of appropriately worded conditions.
Sustainable waste management

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.5

7.6

Not applicable to this application
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

None.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None identified.
Urban Design/Access & Security

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

A 2-bedroom property for 4 persons is required to provide 70 sq.m of floor area; a 1-
bedroom 2 persons house is required to provide 50 sq.m floor area. The proposed
development would provide between 69-111 sq.m of floor area for the two bedroom flats;
and 60 sg.m for the one bedroom flats. It is considered that overall the units comply with
minimum requirements, and two of the units would be marginally below the space
requirement by 1 sq.m. It is considered that the scheme would not be refusable on these
grounds.

Other Issues

Objectors have criticised the depth of the proposed building. The adjoining plot have
buildings that extend further than London Lane. The other neighbouring property (No 90)
also extends a great distance to the rear of the existing dwelling at No 88. In this context,
the proposed building depth is considered to be acceptable.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks to provide the demolition of the existing building and the erection of a
three storey building comprising 9 self contained units (7 x 2 and 2 x 1 bedroom flats). The
site is a generous plot and the proposed building line would be set further back than the
existing building line which would be screened by mature trees and vegetation. The
proposal is considered to have an acceptable impact on the character and appearance of
the Ickenham Conservation Area. The application is therefore recommended for approval

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



subject to condition.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2

The London Plan (2016)

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Zenab Haji-Ismail Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



\
,
7

,

\ -
\

The Douay Martyrs Sch
Cardinal Hume Camp

~ \\ 2
’ North Hillingdon Ce
X &
%

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

88 Long Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
29164/APP/2016/4622

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

North  page 50

Date: e
August 2017 | THILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 35 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Change of use from Use Class A2 (Bank) to Use Class A1/A3
(Shops/Restaurants/Cafes) with external alterations

LBH Ref Nos: 3445/APP/2017/1715

Drawing Nos: 53.27/A.1.C
53.27/A.1.2
53.27/A.1.2
53.27/A.1.4
Date Plans Received: 11/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 11/05/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application is for the change of use of an existing vacant A2 to a mixed A1/A3 coffee
shop involving an amended shopfront door and associated signage, which is subject to a
separate advertisement application (Ref: 3445/ADV/2017/57).

It is considered that the use is appropriate to the high street in a local town centre and that
it would contribute to its vitality and viability. Furthermore the proposed minor alterations
are considered to respect the character and appearance of the property and the street
scene. Subject to appropriate conditions it would not give rise to any adverse impact on
the amenities of adjoining occupiers, nor would there be any unacceptable impact on the
Conservation Area or the parking/traffic generation in this town centre location.

The application is therefore recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 53.27/A.1.0,
53.27/A.1.1, 53.27/A.1.2, 53.27/A.1.3 and 53.27/A.1.4 and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



3 NONSC Use restriction

The premises shall be used solely as a mixed A1/A3 use class and at no time shall
become an A3 use class only.

REASON

To ensure that the use is carried out and maintained as approved in the interest of
safeguarding the amenities of neighbouring residential and other adjoining properties and
the character of the area in compliance with policies OE1 and S6 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies 2007.

4 NONSC Coffee Shop and Goods Restriction

The premises shall not be used other than as a coffee bar serving coffee, other hot and
cold drinks, sandwiches and similar light refreshments for consumption on or off the
premises.

REASON

To ensure that the use is carried out and maintained as approved in the interest of
safeguarding the amenities of neighbouring residential and other adjoining properties and
the character of the area in compliance with policies OE1 and S6 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies 2007.

5 NONSC Details of chimney/vent

No development shall take place until details of the height, position, design and materials
of a chimney or extraction vent and any air conditioning equipment to be provided in
connection with the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be carried out until the vent/chimney
has been installed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter the vent/chimney
shall be permanently retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the use
continues.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 NONSC Noise affecting residents/neighbouring property
Noise affecting residential property:

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be
at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

7 COM20 Air extraction system noise and odour

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

8 N13 Sound insulation of commercial/entertainment premises

The development shall not begin until a sound insulation scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings/premises has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of
sound insulation and other measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the
scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied/use commences
and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in
accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

9 COM23 Hours of Use (Restaurant etc.)

The premises shall not be open for customers outside the following hours: -
0700 to 1900, Mondays - Fridays

0700 to 1900 Saturdays

0900 to 1700 Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

10 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 4.7 (2016) Retail and town centre development

LPP 4.8 (2016) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and
related facilities and services

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work
Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
You should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday. No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other
emissions caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on
control measures is given in "The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines", Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior
approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the normal working hours set out
above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises. For further
information and advice, contact the Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the South side of the High Street Ickenham. The property
was previously occupied by Lloyds TSB Bank but it is now vacant. The application site is
adjoined by a Community Hall to the East and a commercial unit to the West.

The application site is situated within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area as identified
in the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). It is
within Ickenham Local Centre, but not within a core or primary shopping area as identified
within the adopted UDP.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for change of use from Use Class A2 (Financial
And Professional Services) to Use Class A1/A3 (Shops, Restaurants and Cafes) and
external alterations to the front elevation.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

3445/ADV/2006/99 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham
INSTALLATION OF INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA AND PROJECTING SIGNS

Decision: 29-12-2006 Refused

3445/ADV/2007/29 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham
INSTALLATION OF EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA AND PROJECTING SIGN.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



Decision: 26-04-2007 Approved

3445/ADV/2013/20 Lloyds Tsb Bank Plc 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Installation of 1 internally-illuminated fascia sign, 1 internally-illuminated hanging sign and 3 non
illuminated other signs

Decision: 07-06-2013  Approved

3445/ADV/2017/57 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Installation of externally illuminated fascia sign and internally illuminated projecting roundel sign

Decision: 10-07-2017  Approved

3445/APP/2007/1403 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham
DETAILS - NO FURTHER ACTION.

Decision: 17-05-2007 NFA

3445/J/98/3095 35 Swakeleys Road Ickenham
Installation of a non-illuminated projecting box sign and an externally illuminated 'Lloyds TSB'
fascia sign

Decision: 28-10-1998 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History
3445/ADV/2017/57 - Installation of externally illuminated fascia sign and internally
illuminated projecting roundel sign.

There is no relevant planning history in this instance. The majority of the previous
applications relate to advertisement consents for the previous use.

4. Planning Policies and Standards
No additional policies for consideration.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



BE13
BE15
BE20
LDF-AH

LPP 4.7
LPP 4.8

S6
BE28
BE38

BE4
LPP 3.5
OE1

OE3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2016) Retail and town centre development

(2016) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and related facilities
and services

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas
Shop fronts - design and materials

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 28th June 2017
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

Ickenham Residents Association - Objection:

The proposed COSTA facia sign would be externally illuminated, whereas the standard COSTA
projecting sign would be internally illuminated, not allowed in the Ickenham Village Conservation

Area.

(OFFICER COMMENTS - This is not part of this application and is dealt with separately under the

advertisement application, ref: 3445/ADV/2017/57.)

They go on to state:

Already plenty of coffee shops in Ickenham, and the location is immediately adjacent to the Village

Hall, where many charities and local organisations hold their own Coffee Mornings.

There are currently 23 restaurants/cafes or hot food takeaway establishments (out of a total of 37
retail shops) in the shopping parade along Swakeleys Road, Glebe Avenue and High Road + West

Ruislip Station.

Swakeleys Road ICKENHAM

1 WENZEL's Bakery and Takeaway.
2 Fry Days Fish and Chips Takeaway.
3 The Tichenham Inn Public House .
4 Maison de Soleil - Cafe.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



Roc Cottage Chinese Restaurant Takeaway.

Birothi Indian Restaurant Takeaway.

Lotus House Chinese Restaurant Takeaway.

73 Swakeleys Road Restaurant and Coffee Shop.

o ~NO O

Long Lane ICKENHAM

9 Coach & Horses Public House.
10 Pink Garlic.

11 Fresh Bites.

Glebe Avenue ICKENHAM

12 Blue Saffron Indian take away.

13 Peking Palace Chinese take away.

14 Iced 'n' Sliced cafe.

15 No. 2 Glebe Avenue / MAPLESTONE - Change of Use for hot takeaway approved
(2771/APP/2012/2062)

High Road ICKENHAM

16 Soldiers Return Public House.

17 Old Fox Public House introducing
18 a new ltalian Restaurant

High Road ICKENHAM / West Ruislip Station

19 Dominos Pizza, Great Central Parade,

20 Darjeeling Tandoori, Great Central Parade,

21 Ickenham Rendezvous.

22 Ickenham Fish Bar.

23 Pakora East India Takeaway (next to West Ruislip Station)

Plus two Petrol Stations (one in Long Lane and one in High Road)
with shop outlets and facilities for takeaway food.

OFFICER COMMENTS:

The objection from Ickenham Residents Association is noted. However it is important to note that
although the proposal is for A1/A3 use, it is quite specific in regard to the proposed 'Coffee Shop'
and not say restaurants or hot food takeaway establishments. In addition from their own submission
it is clear that the 'search area' taken is much wider than just the application site. Nevertheless
taking just Swakeleys Road, there are currently only 2 existing cafes along this stretch, as taken
from their submission. Therefore it is considered that this is not an over intensification of one
particular use in this area. Furthermore the proposal would help bring an existing vacant unit back
into use thereby increasing the viability and vitality of the local town centre.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer Comments - no objection:

There is no on site parking provision for the existing or proposed uses. The parking standards for the
existing and proposed uses are similar. No objections are raised on highway grounds.

Access Officer - no objection:
| have considered the detail of this planning application and have no comments to make.

Conservation Officer - no objection.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Environmental Protection Unit - no objection subject to conditions:

Air extraction system noise and odour

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of noise and
odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the
LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the
approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Noise affecting residential property

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least 5
dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the nearest
residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance with British
Standard 4142.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Sound insulation of commercial premises

The development shall not begin until a sound insulation scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of sound insulation and other
measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Control of environmental nuisance from construction work (Informative )

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990. You should ensure
that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and
1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturday. No works should
be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974
(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other emissions caused
by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on control measures is given in
"The control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition: best practice guidelines",
Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be allowed at
any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out the works
other than within the normal working hours set out above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises. For further information and advice, contact the Environmental
Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155)

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Planning Policy Team - No Obijection:

| note that the application is for change of use from A2 to A1/A3. Whilst | am aware of the
complexities around the planning definition of 'coffee shops' and the tendency to submit mixed-use
definitions for sites of this nature, applicants should still seek to justify why a mixed-use definition is
required. This may include evidence of a forecasted sales breakdown or information on the number
of covers. As the applicant will likely be aware, A1 retail policies are prominent across planning
policy and the London Borough of Hillingdon's local policies are no exception.

In regards to the principle of development, there is no policy objection to the proposed change of
use. The site is currently vacant and the proposed change of use would allow the site to come back
into operation. Paragraph 5.2.1 of the Mayor of London's Town Centre SPG highlights that:

'Vacant properties can lead to a spiral of decline, engender feelings of neglect and lack of confidence
in town centres, and act as a magnet for crime and antisocial behaviour. Redeveloping and bringing
vacant and under-used sites and properties back into use can help stimulate vitality and economic
viability.'

It is acknowledged that coffee shops are common in high streets and town centres and can add to
the vitality and viability of a town centre. Coffee shops can enhance the shopping experience by
providing a location for shoppers to relax and acts as a location for people to meet.

Furthermore, regardless of 'coffee shop' land use definition, the change of use would not result in
the loss of Use Class A1 shop and so is not in conflict with Policies S9 and S10 of the UDP Saved
Policies (2007) or Policy DMTC 3 of the emerging Local Plan Part 2.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy S6 states changes of use applications will be granted where: a frontage of design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided; the use would be compatible
with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby
residential properties; and would have no harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic
congestion. The proposed external alterations to the building would not appear out of
keeping with the existing building or impact unduly on the visual amenities of the
surrounding area. Loss of residential amenity and highway issues are dealt with elsewhere
in the report and as such, the proposal is considered to comply with all the criteria listed in
Policy S6 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

It is generally accepted that coffee shops have a similar footfall to mainstream retail units
therefore providing a significant contribution toward the patronage of shopping areas as a
whole. It is also the case that this proposal is a hybrid A1/A3 use as generally food would
only be re-heated on the premises. To ensure only a coffee shop is implemented as part of
this consent the permission is recommended to be conditioned as a hybrid A1/A3 use only.
It is therefore considered that the application proposal would positively contribute to the
vitality and viability of the Local Town Centre Area.

The proposal involves change of use from A2 to a mix A1 and A3 use. It does not involve
the loss of any retail frontage.

The proposal would provide an appropriate use within the high street. The proposed use
would contribute to the vitality and viability of the high street and would not result in an
undue concentration of non A1 retail units. Therefore, the principle of a mixed use A1/A3
(shop and restaurant/cafe) is considered acceptable.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

Furthermore the Planning Policy Team have also confirmed that there is no policy objection
to the proposed change of use. The site is currently vacant and the proposed change of
use would allow the site to come back into operation. Regardless of 'coffee shop' land use
definition, the change of use would not result in the loss of Use Class A1 shop and so is
not in conflict with Policies S9 and S10 of the UDP Saved Policies (2007) or Policy DMTC
3 of the emerging Local Plan Part 2.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy BE13 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) requires new development to
harmonise with the appearance of the existing street scene and area, and Policy BE15
requires alterations to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural
composition and proportions of the original building. Furthermore Policy BE4 requires
development to preserve and enhance the character of Conservation Areas. Policy BE4
reflects the relevant legal duties.

The application site is located within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. The
Council's Conservation Officer has no objections to the proposed change of use. The
external alteration involving the amendment to the shop front door is considered to have
minimal impact on the character and appearance of the street scene. Therefore, the
application is considered to preserve and enhance the character of the Conservation Area
in accordance with Policies BE4, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon UDP.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Adopted Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007) states that
development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene. The proposal would have minimal impact on the character and
appearance of the street scene and as such would comply with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon UDP..

Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and Policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated.

The Council's Environmental Protection Officer has not raised an objection to the
application subject to appropriate conditions being imposed.

The proposal is for change of use from A2 to A1/A3 use. The application forms confirm that
the hours of operation would be 07:00 to 19:00 Monday to Saturday and 09:00 to 17:00 on
Sundays. The hours of operation are considered acceptable. This would be secured
through a condition.

The application does not include details of any extraction/ventilation. However, the details
would be secured through a condition.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



7.09

7.10

711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

Therefore subject to these conditions the proposal is considered to accord with Policies
OE1 and OE3 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Policy S6 states changes of use applications will be granted where; a frontage of design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided; the use would be compatible
with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby
residential properties; and would have no harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic
congestion.

The proposal would not have any adverse impact in respect of any of these matters, given
its town centre location.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

It is considered that the proposal would not give rise to any harm in terms of traffic impact
or pedestrian safety in this location. There is no external seating proposed.

There is no off street car parking immediately associated with this unit. The existing
access and servicing arrangements would remain as per the existing retail uses. In this
respect, it is therefore considered that there would be no conflict with policies AM7 and
AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this application.
Disabled access

It is recommended that if permission were to be granted an informative is added advising
the applicant of the need to comply with The Building Regulations Part M "Access to and
use of Buildings'.

Therefore the proposal would comply with the intentions of the Council's HDAS: Accessible
Hillingdon.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

No trees or other landscape features of merit would be affected by the development and
the proposal will have little visual impact when viewed from the public realm. There is no
opportunity for landscape enhancement as part of this town centre site. As such the
proposal is considered acceptable in accordance with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon UDP.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy OE1 states that permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and Policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated.

The Environmental Protection Officer has not raised an objection to the application subject

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



to a number of safeguarding conditions being applied relating to the extract ventilation
systems and odour control, noise and sound insulation, in order to safeguard the amenity
of residents and the surrounding area.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised have been addressed in the main report.
7.2 Impact on Street Scene

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

Policy BE4 states that: "New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
will be expected to preserve or enhance those features which contribute to their special
architectural and visual qualities; development should avoid the demolition or loss of such
features. There will be a presumption in favour of retaining buildings which make a positive
contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area. Policy BE4 reflects the
relevant legal duties.

The proposed alterations to the frontage are considered acceptable. They would not
detract from the character and appearance of the existing building or the Conservation
Area.

7.20 Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.4 Carparking & Layout

There is no on site parking provision for the existing or proposed uses. The parking
standards for the existing and proposed uses are similar.

It is considered that the proposal would not give rise to any harm in terms of traffic impact
or pedestrian safety in this location.

The existing access and servicing arrangement would remain as per the existing.

In this respect, it is considered that there would be no conflict with policies AM7 and AM14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.6  Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would not be detrimental to visual amenity of the conservation area and the
proposed use is compatible with the neighbouring uses, with no loss of amenity to
residential properties.

There are no identified traffic, highways related or parking concerns as a result of the
proposal.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



The application accords with the Council's adopted planning policies and is therefore
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007),
Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan,Saved Policies, September 2007).

London Plan (2016)

NPPF

Contact Officer: Hardeep Ryatt Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Rectory

Shelter

/
.
O, -
Use, ’ .
.
y
. s
K
.
\
A, -
\\\\ \\\\ C\6 ; \\ N
N N [
~o SO ’ N
< S~ S ’ \
~ ~. \
’ \\\ AN \\
. N .
~ S ’
N ~ ~
~ Sl The /
/ N N ;Y
K B ~ ~. Coach House
/ S S o N
S~ N ~ ’
N N
’ - NN ’
. s -

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. 35 Swakeleys Road Rgf;gﬁ:‘r:; g:::‘t’:gﬁs
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 3445/APP/2017/1715 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database A t 201 7
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey uqaus
100019283 North Page 66 9 LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 236 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Change of use from a group home into 5 x 1-bed self-contained flats with
associated parking and cycle stores.

LBH Ref Nos: 72634/APP/2017/769

Drawing Nos: 503/P/07
503/P/06
503/P/02
503/P/04
503/P/05
503/P/01 (as amended)
2017/P/FISW/01
Date Plans Received: 28/02/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/02/2017
Date Application Valid: 14/03/2017 23/06/2017
13/03/2017
14/03/2017
03/07/2017

1. SUMMARY

The proposed Change of Use of the building is compatible with surrounding residential
development and provides 1 bedroom units that will contribute towards the residential mix
within the surrounding area.

Satisfactory living conditions would be provided for future occupants and the amenities of
neighbouring residents would not be compromised.

Adequate parking facilities would be provided.
2. RECOMMENDATION

A) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to

secure:

Non-monetary contributions:

Enter into a S278/S38 for all highways works related to the provision of layby
parking on Hetherington Way:

a) Adjustment to kerb lines;
b) Diversion of the existing pavement;
c¢) Surfacing and marking out of the layby parking area;

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets

the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, or such other
date as agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement, delegated authority be
given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse planning permission for
the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to deliver necessary offsite highway works and to
provide contributions towards the improvement of services and facilities as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
delivery of necessary offsite highway and landscaping works). The proposal
therefore conflicts with the National planning Policy Framework, Policy 7.4 of the
London Plan (March 2015), Policies AM7 and BE 38 of the adopted Local Plan and
the Council's Planning Obligations SPG.’

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning and Enforcement prior to
issuing the decision:

Delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
APPROVE subject to the legal agreement.

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:-

503/P/07

503/P/06

503/P/02

503/P/04

503/P/05

503/P/01 (as amended)
2017/P/FISW/01

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM21 Sound insulation /mitigation

The development shall not begin until a scheme for the control of noise transmission
between adjoining residential units has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of sound insulation
and other measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be
implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in
accordance with policy OE 1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

4 H8 Surfacing and marking out of access/parking/servicing areas

The development shall not be occupied until the parking areas shown on the approved
plans have been drained, surfaced and marked out in accordance with details to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter these
areas shall be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid out
on site in accordance with Policy AM 14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
H4 Mix of housing units
H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008
3 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

4 117 Communal Amenity Space

Where it is possible to convey communal areas of landscaping to individual householders,
the applicant is requested to conclude a clause in the contract of the sale of the properties
reminding owners of their responsibilities to maintain landscaped areas in their ownership
and drawing to their attention the fact that a condition has been imposed to this effect in
this planning permission.

5 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW

6 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to conditions 3 and 4 which must be discharged prior to the
commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you commence
these works prior to the discharge of these conditions. The Council may consider taking
enforcement action to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For further information and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



advice contact - Residents Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895
250230).

7 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site consists of a single unit within a wider two-storey complex which houses flats.
The unit is distributed over both floors with the first floor level extending over 234
Swakeleys Road which is a single-storey one bedroom flat. The unit has an integral
staircase which is accessed via a footpath that connects with Swakeleys Road and
Hetherington Way.

The surrounding area is characterised by the Hetherington Way development of two-storey
blocks of flats and terraced dwellings to the south, larger, predominately detached
residential dwellings and occasional flatted development on Swakeleys Road to the north
and east and large, detached dwellings on Highfield Drive to the west. Buildings are
generally set back from the road and there is a strong presence of mature landscaping
including trees, grass verges and small greens which combine to produce an open and
verdant character and appearance to the surrounding area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the change of use of a vacant part of a building, previously used as a
group home, to 5 self contained one bedroom flats. The conversion will be achieved
through internal alterations and there will be no extensions to the building or external
modifications.

Whilst the use as a group home is already classed as C3, a change of use application is
required as the development involves the division of the group home into a number of
separate units.

All flats within Hetherington Way have access to communal parking. There is no
designated parking. Nonetheless the lease to the group home appears to indicate access
to 2 designated parking spaces.

Officers are taking the view the development as proposed has access to five parking

spaces for future occupants of the flats. Two of these will be accounted for by the existing
off street parking serving the group home. A further three spaces will be provided within a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



new layby formed to the side of Hetherington Way, close to the junction with Swakeleys
Road. This will result in the loss of a portion of the grass area adjacent to 2, 6 and 8
Hetherington Way. The existing tarmac footpath will be diverted around the layby. These
works will be secured by way of a legal agreement.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

236 Swakeleys Road was constructed as part of a Council flatted development scheme,
now known as Hetherington Way, under application 8380/75/589. The original dwelling at
236 Swakeleys Way was demolished as part of the development. The building was initially
intended to accommodate flats but it was subsequently converted to group housing
residents with learning difficulties and associated live-in support workers.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

H4 Mix of housing units

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on 16/03/2017 and a site notice was displayed on 23/03/2017 close to the
application site.

Five letters of objection received and are summarised below:-

Objection to use of green space for parking due to loss of landscaping and highway and pedestrian
safety implications.

This would be cramped development and there should be no more than 3 units created.

Includes the renovation of 234 Swakeleys Road which is not included in the description and so is
misleading.

Three additional parking spaces are not enough for the development.

No details of where cycle storage will be located.

OFFICER COMMENT: Plans have been amended and the green space on Swakeleys Road will no
longer be used for car parking. The number of parking spaces provided complies with the Council's
adopted parking standards. Any alterations to No. 234 are internal only, the unit will remain in use as
a flat and planning permission would not be required for such alterations.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION:

No objection to the conversion to flats but there appears to be confusion over the amount of spaces
that will be provided in each location.

We are totally opposed to the introduction of private parking management companies to the public
streets of Ickenham

suggested by the following statement included in the Design and Access Statement, i.e. "The
parking spaces will be dedicated to the flats and controlled by a Parking Management Company."

We oppose strongly, as we have in the past, any development on this important local site (D-shaped
Green).

Internal Consultees
ACCESS OFFICER:

No comments to make.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



LANDSCAPES OFFICER:

There is no objection to the change of use of the building. However, the provision of parking within
site B sets a most undesirable precedent and is not supported. It is totally impracticable - and
undesirable for safety reasons - that anyone would use these parking spaces to access site A which
involves crossing a very busy road.

Moreover, it would be impossible to secure these areas for private parking without introducing
removable bollards or similar street 'clutter' which will exacerbate the visual impact on this attractive
open space.

HIGHWAYS:

This latest application is a revision of an application that | commented on earlier in the year. The site
was previously 5x1 bed units and was converted to a group home with 2 allocated car parking
spaces provided close to the site in Hetherington Way.

The latest scheme has seen 3 additional spaces are now provided off Hetherington Way which is a
congested local access road. Car parking stress in the area is high with residents parking on
footpaths and close to junctions.

The proposal is to revert the property back to 5 new 1 bed flats with 2 existing allocated car parking
spaces as well as provide the 3 additional spaces created by converting a grass verge on
Hetherington Way which is supported.

The proposed development will result in a small number of additional trips to and from the property
but this is not likely to be significant. The development has 5 cycle lockers provided nearby which is
also supported.

| presume the development will use the existing refuse/recycling facilities.

On the basis of the above comments | do not have significant highway concerns over the latest
proposals.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within an established residential area and utilises an existing building
that was previously in C3 use as a group home.

Para. 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) instructs Planning Authorities
to maintain a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Compliance with relevant
local, regional and national policies indicates sustainable development and this report will
assess the proposed development on this basis.

Para. 17 recognises the conversion and re-use of existing buildings as a core planning
principle.

Policy H 7 of the Local Plan states that the conversion of residential properties into more
units is acceptable in principle provided this can be achieved without causing demonstrable
harm to the residential amenities or character of the area or the amenity of adjoining
occupiers. In addition, adequate sound insulation should be provided, car parking should
meet standards adopted by the local planning authority, all units should be self contained
with exclusive use of sanitary and kitchen facilities and with individual entrances, and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

internal staircases are provided to serve units above ground floor level; and adequate
amenity space should be provided for the benefit of residents of the proposed
development.

The proposed units are all self contained with their own designated entrances and all upper
floor units are served by an internal staircase. Other criteria within Policy H 7 will be
assessed further within this report.

Policy H 4 of the Local Plan requires a practicable mix of housing units of different sizes
and specifically encourages one and two bedroom units.
Density of the proposed development

Table 3.2 of the London Plan (2016) provides a matrix that indicates the optimum
residential density level, expressed in units per hectare, for development based on the
character of its surroundings (central, urban or suburban), public transport accessibility
level (PTAL) on a sliding scale of 0 (poor) to 6 (excellent) and the type of units being offered
(based on the amount of habitable rooms per unit).

In this instance, the site is located in a suburban setting with a low PTAL score of 1b and
the proposed units would each provide 2 habitable rooms. As such, the optimum density
level for the efficient use of the site falls between 50 and 75 units per hectare, or 150 - 200
habitable rooms per hectare.

The overall area of the site is approximately 182 m2 and the converted building will provide
5 residential units, thereby equating to a residential density of approximately result in a
residential density of approximately 275 dwellings, or 550 habitable rooms, per hectare.

Whilst it is noted that the density figures are well in excess of those set out in the matrix, it
is considered acceptable in this instance as, due to the nature of the development, the
communal area surrounding the units has not been taken into consideration, as would
generally be the case when calculating densities. Furthermore, the size of the proposed
flats is comparable with the size of other flats housed within the the building and other
surrounding buildings. Para 1.3.52 of the London Plan Housing SPG (2016) states that
local or site specific features may be given weight when assessing acceptable density and,
in this instance, it is considered the site specific circumstances of the application allow for
the density of development proposed.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development is complaint with Policy 3.4 of the
London Plan (2016)
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to the proposed development.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the proposed development.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to the proposed development.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposal does not involve any external alterations to the existing building. The use of
the unit will remain as residential, with a similar number of occupants as would have been
present for the existing use. It is therefore considered that the proposed change of use of
the unit would be compatible with its surroundings and not result in any adverse impact
upon the character and appearance of the street scene.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



The layby parking that will be formed at the entrance to Hetherington Way will not result in
the loss of any significant proportion of the landscaped communal area adjacent to 2, 6 and
8 Hetherington Way and will therefore not compromise the established open and verdant
character and appearance that is maintained in that location.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Local Plan Policies BE 13, BE 19 and OE 1 and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed change of use to flats is from an existing residential group home use which
includes 8 bedrooms and, as such, it is considered that the conversion to a total of 5 x one
bedroom flats would not materially alter or intensify the use of the site nor the subject
building.

Conversion works will be internal only and the flats that will be created will utilise existing
fenestrations with any currently obscurely glazed windows remaining as such. As a result,
it is not considered that there will be any potential for increased and / or intrusive
overlooking of neighbouring properties as a result of the proposal.

No extensions or other external works will be carried out and, as such, there are no
concerns regarding potential overbearing or overshadowing impact towards adjoining
neighbours.

The creation of layby parking at the entrance to Hetherington Way will not compromise the
amenities of neighbouring residents as parked cars will be a sufficient distance from
habitable room windows and the layby will not result in the loss of a significant proportion of
the communal amenity space adjacent to 2, 6 and 8 Hetherington Way.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Local Plan
Policy BE 24 and London Plan Policy 7.6.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The internal space standards enshrined within the London Plan stipulate minimum Gross
Internal Area (GIA) for dwellings based on the amount of bedrooms provided, occupancy
rate and the amount of storeys over which the space is distributed. These standards are
informed by the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) Technical
housing standards - nationally described space standard (2015).

The minimum GIA for a 1 bedroom single floor flat is 39 m?, assuming occupation by 1
person or 50 m? assuming occupation by 2 people. All but one of the proposed flats have a
GIA of 50 m2. The remaining flat has a GIA of 48 m? and, as such, would only be suitable
for single occupancy.

All new units will therefore provide adequate GIA for their proposed occupation and are in
accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan.

Policy BE 23 of the Local Plan requires that all new development both preserves private
amenity space serving existing properties and provides sufficient private amenity space for
future occupants. The Council's SPD for Residential Layouts provides standards for the
amount of private amenity space that should be provided for the occupants of a residential
unit. This takes the form of a sliding scale based on the amount of bedrooms that the unit
provides.

Whilst the proposed flats would not benefit from any designated private amenity space it is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



710

711

7.12

713

714

considered that this can be considered acceptable for the following reasons. The units
provided are all one bedroom properties where it is recognised that the need for private
amenity space is not as great. The proposal is for a Change of Use of an existing building
where it would not be feasible to provide private amenity space and it should be noted than
none of the existing flats within the building, or in other buildings on Hetherington Way, have
private balconies or rear gardens. There is good quality landscaped communal amenity
space provided immediately adjacent to the building.

All habitable room windows are well served by windows and openings that would allow
effective natural light permeation, in accordance with Local Plan Policy BE 20 and paras.
2.3.37 and 2.3.40 and Standard 32 of the London Plan Housing SPG.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed flats would be served by a total of 5 car parking spaces, a rate of one space
per unit. 2 of these car parking spaces comprise of those allocated to the existing use. A
further 3 spaces are intended to be provided in the form of a layby on Hetherington Way.

The ratio of car parking spaces to residential units is in compliance with the Council's car
parking standards and, as such, the proposed change of use would not lead to an adverse
impact on parking provision within the surrounding area.

The proposed layby will be sited in a position where there is good visibility for motorists
entering and leaving the parking spaces and on a residential road where, in any case,
traffic would be moving slowly. The car parking spaces would be of acceptable dimensions
to accommodate vehicles.

The existing footpath bordering Hetherington Way will be realigned around the layby and, as
such, the proposed parking spaces would not be disruptive to pedestrians or cause any
unacceptable hazard.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with local Plan
Policies AM 7 and AM 14 and London Plan Policy 6.13.
Urban design, access and security

The building is located within an existing residential development which benefits from good
levels of surveillance and would not result in any residential units within a secluded area.

The development is therefore in accordance with Local Plan Policy BE 18 and London Plan
Policy 7.13.
Disabled access

As this is an application for Change of Use of an existing building, the development is not
required to fully comply with Part M of the Building Regulations, as confirmed by para.
2.1.13 of the London Plan Housing SPG.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposed development falls below the threshold for provision of affordable housing,
which is attached to developments involving a net gain of 10 or more residential units.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The building is sited with the wider Hetherington Way development which already benefits
from adequate landscaping. The proposed layby car parking spaces would remove a small
portion of lawn area close to the junction with Swakeleys Road but it is not considered that
the loss of greenery would be to an extent that would damage the overall quality of the
landscaping on the street.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



715

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

It is therefore considered that the proposed development accords with Local Plan Policy
BE 38.
Sustainable waste management

Future occupants would utilise the existing waste collection service provided on
Hetherington Way.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this development.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Existing drainage measures would remain in place. The site is not located within Flood
Zone 2 or 3 and future occupants would not be exposed to unacceptable risk of flooding.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The development involves residential development within an area surrounded by similar
uses and it is therefore not considered that there would be any uncharacteristic level of
noise generated. Air quality would not be affected by the proposal.

Comments on Public Consultations

Parking arrangements have been amended as per plan number 2017/P/F/SW/01 and the
green space on Swakeleys Road will no longer be used for car parking. The size of the
proposed units are comparable to others within the building and the provision of one
bedroom units add to the residential mix within the surrounding area. The number of
parking spaces provided complies with the Council's adopted parking standards. Any
alterations to No. 234 are internal only, the unit will remain in use as a flat and planning
permission would not be required for such alterations.

Planning obligations

The proposal involves the creation of 5 new residential units with a combined external floor
area of 270 m2 and therefore represents chargeable development in relation to both the
Mayoral and LBH CIL requirements. A liability notice setting out the required CIL payment
will be issued should planning permission be granted.

The proposal involves works to the Highway and under the ownership of the Council. Any
approval will therefore be granted only when a Section 278 agreement securing these
works has been agreed and signed.

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable for the reasons set out in this
report and it is therefore recommended that it be approved, subject to conditions and the
recommended legal agreement to secure the off-street parking area.

11. Reference Documents
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Planning Obligations SPD

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

DCLG Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard (2015)

Contact Officer: James McLean Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



// // //
. Shelter -
.

2
s
.

L~ - -

L7

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

236 Swakeleys Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72634/APP/2017/769 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 81 August 2017

HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PEMBROKE HOUSE 5-9 PEMBROKE ROAD RUISLIP
Development: Extension of the 4th floor to provide 1 x 2 bedroom unit (Use Class C3)

LBH Ref Nos: 38324/APP/2017/2287

Drawing Nos: 15.530.P03- Existing Elevations
15.530.P02- Existing Floor Plan
15.530.P01- Proposed Site Layoult
15.530.P05 Rev B - Proposed Elevations
15.530.P04 Rev B - Proposed Floor Plans
15.530.B01- Block Plan
15.530.L01- Location Plan

Date Plans Received: 22/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/06/2017
1. SUMMARY

This application is being reported to committee because the site has previous planning
enforcement history.

This application seeks consent for an extension at roof level to create 1 x 2 bedroom
residential unit. The proposal by reason of its design, massing, siting and form would
appear as a visually dominant and incongruous addition on the roof of the building, which
would detract from the buildings setting within the street scene and adjacent Conservation
Area and Area of Special Local Character. The scheme by virtue of its siting and design,
would also appear visually dominant when viewed from the neighbouring properties, to the
detriment of their amenity. The scheme, by virtue of the unacceptable layout would fail to
provide an adequate standard of accommodation for future occupants.

Little information has been provided in support of the application in terms of use of the
existing car park and how car parking demand from the proposed flats will be satisfied,
nor is there any information provided in support of the application in terms of additional
secure covered cycle or any additional refuse/recycling facilities.

Overall, there are concerns with the scheme as presented and it fails to comply with the
Councils adopted policies and guidance, and is thereby recommended for refusal.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Design and scale

The proposal, by reason of its unacceptable design, massing, siting and form would
appear as a visually dominant and incongruous addition to Pembroke House, that has had
little regard to the pattern, design and grain of the host building. The proposed residential
accommodation and associated amenity space would detract from the buildings setting
within the street scene and adjacent Conservation Area and Area of Special Local
Character and would constitute an unacceptable overdevelopment of the site and the host
building. The proposal fails to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework,

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) and paragraphs 128-134 of the NPPF
(2012), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies BE4, BE5, 5BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

H4 Mix of housing units

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the northern side of Pembroke Road. It is situated
immediately to the rear of Pembroke House and the proposed building would be located in
the north western corner of the car park to the rear of the main building. Pembroke House
is a partly four and five storey detached property and former office building fronting
Pembroke Road. All floors of the building have consent for their conversion to residential
under either the prior approval process or planning/appeal.

The proposed development site falls adjacent to two heritage assets, the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area and Midcroft, Ruislip Area of Special Local Character (ASLC). Although
Pembroke House is a later intrusion within the street scene, to the rear of the site, it is
characterised by well landscaped rear gardens. This part of the area includes housing
development following the introduction of the railways in 1904 and a proposed urban
expansion for a Garden Suburb. The immediate surrounding area is characterised by inter
and post war properties and the rear of the commercial units on Ruislip High Street.

The site lies within Ruislip Town Centre and the Developed Area as identified within the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the extension at roof level to create 1 x 2 bedroom unit
which would wrap around the existing unit. The application does not indicate whether car
parking would be provided.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

38324/APP/2013/2763 Pembroke House, 5 -9 Pembroke Road Ruislip

Change of use from B1 (office) to residential (C3) (Application for Prior Approval under Scheduls
Part 3 Class J of the The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order
1995 (as amended))

Decision: 13-11-2013 PRN

38324/APP/2013/3629 Pembroke House, 5 -9 Pembroke Road Ruislip

Removal of condition No. 4 (Development) of planning permission ref:38324/APP/2011/786 datt
22/12/2011 (Part conversion from retail/offices (Use Class A1/B1) to 6 x two-bedroom flats and
x threebedroom

flats with associated parking, amenity space, cycle store and bin store, alterations to elevations,
new fenestration to upper floors, demolition of existing external fire escape and alterations to
existing vehicular crossover.)

Decision:

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



38324/APP/2014/2680 Pembroke House Pembroke Road Ruislip

Two storey building to rear for use as office space and storage involving installation of railings a
gates

Decision: 11-11-2014 Refused Appeal: 02-10-2015 Part Allowed

38324/APP/2016/3586 Pembroke House 5-9 Pembroke Road Ruislip
Extension of 4th floor accommodation to provide 2 x 1 bedroom flats

Decision: 23-11-2016  Refused Appeal: 23-05-2017 Dismissed

38324/APP/2016/407 Pembroke House Pembroke Road Ruislip

Erection of detached building to accommodate refuse storage at ground floor and office
accommodation above

Decision: 21-06-2016  Refused Appeal: 11-11-2016 Allowed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

H4 Mix of housing units

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 24th August 2017

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A site notice was displayed and neighbouring residents were consulted between 20-07-17 and 10-
08-17. 2 no objections were received to the application which are summarised below:

Neighbouring resident
- the application will block daylight and sunlight to existing dwellings.
Ruislip Resident's Association

The application is not dissimilar to the application that was submitted previously which was refused
and dismissed at appeal. The reason for refusal and the Inspector's remain relevant to this
application.

Internal Consultees

Highways

Pembroke Road is a busy classified road on the Council's road network. There are existing waiting
restrictions on Pembroke Road to deter on-street parking. The site has a PTAL value of 4 (good) as
a result of proximity to Ruislip Station and local bus services but there will be some demand for car
parking from the proposed development. The existing development consists of a previous office
conversion whereby the site was converted into 19 flats with the majority of studio and 1 bed
configuration.

There are 21 car parking spaces and 10 cycle parking spaces on site. The site has its own vehicular
access point on Pembroke Road which is located opposite Station Approach. The proposal is to
create an additional 2bed flats on the roof of the building. There has been a recent appeal against a
similar 2x1 bed development on the roof of the building that was dismissed but not on highway
grounds. The inspector was of the opinion that such a development would not generate any
significant impact on the local highway. The only information provided in support of the application in
terms of use of the existing car park and how car parking demand from the proposed flats will be
satisfied is the Planning Statement.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



The Planning Statement suggests the 19 existing flats are served by the 21 space car park and the
Inspector at the recent appeal accepted this notion. Should the application be considered acceptable
condition should be secured ensuring this flat has an allocated parking space and that no parking
spaces are to be let or sold to others outside the development. There is no information provided in
support of the application in terms of additional secure covered cycle or any additional
refuse/recycling facilities but these issues can be conditioned. The same applies to EVCP points
and the site should contain at least 4 active and 4 passive charging points.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land. Pembroke House
comprises 19no units converted from former offices and as such there is be no objection
in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all other material
planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 4 (good). The London Plan
(2016) range for sites with a PTAL of 4 to 6 in an urban area is 45-185 u/ha per hectare.
Based on a total site area the proposal would be in keeping with the density matrix. The
density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale development
such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more appropriate to
consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its impact on
adjoining occupiers.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Section 72 of the (Planning Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 states the
statutory duty of Local Planning Authorities in regard to development affecting conservation
areas 'special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area.’

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in
orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

The proposed development site falls adjacent to two heritage assets, the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area and Midcroft, Ruislip Area of Special Local Character (ASLC).

Policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies Policies states that
the Council will conserve and enhance BE4 of the , states that new development within or
on the fringes of conservation areas, will be expected to preserve or enhance those
features which contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves
the amenity and character of the area.

The surrounding area is mixed in terms of the style and character of the buildings. Given
the location of many of the buildings to the west and north within the Conservation Area and
Area of Special Local Character, these buildings are much more modest in scale and of a
traditional character and design. To the west and north, the prevailing character is for
largely two/three storey development. Similarly to the east of the application site, the
immediate properties are three storey and the remainder single storey bungalows. To the
south of the site is the five storey Kings Lodge building.

In terms of the application site, at present it is a largely 4 storey building that sits back from
Pembroke Road and by virtue of its location, is read more in the context of the buildings on
the northern side of Pembroke Road. Given its set back from Pembroke Road, and its
existing recessed roof form and glazed upper floors, when this building is viewed from the
Conservation Area and surrounding approaches to the site, it does not appear overly
dominant in view. The roof form is not alien nor intrusive

This application seeks to extend the existing fifth floor of the building to provide 1 x 2
bedroom flat. The existing fifth floor development, appears unduly dominant and
overbearing on the roof, and when viewed from Pembroke Road, fails to integrate
successfully or maintain the modest step in height that the building achieves on its eastern
elevations. The addition of further development on the roof, by reason of its design, siting
and massing would fail to integrate with the host or adjacent buildings and would appear as
a visually incongruous addition on the roof. By virtue of its width and length it would also
give the impression of a top heavy development, and further highlights the unacceptable
scale and incongruous nature of the development. The scheme would dominate views
from the surrounding Conservation Area and Area of Special Local Character to an
unacceptable degree and is considered unacceptable.

Furthermore, it is noted that roof terraces are proposed on the roof, which extend to the
edges. Roof terraces are not common features within the surrounding area, and where
they exist, they are always set back from the edges so as to reduce their visual impact.
The proposal would introduce a vertical formation that would have a stark urban edge.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal, by reason of its unacceptable design, excessive
scale, massing, siting and form would appear as a visually dominant and incongruous
addition on the roof of the building, which would detract from its setting within the street
scene and adjacent Conservation Area and Area of Special Local Character.

Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

See above 'impact on conservation area'.
Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. Generally,
15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum
of 21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied to
new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant loss
of residential amenity.

The site is bounded by housing to the north-west and north-east with Ruislip Station and
Kings Lodge flats located to the south. The nearest residential properties on the High Street
are set some 25m from the application building, the properties to the rear on Brickwall Lane
are set some 35m to 45m away, those within the Kings Lodge Development set 31 metres
away and those on Pembroke Road to the east 10 metres away. It is noted that the
scheme would be close to those properties in Pembroke Road, however, given that the
location of the proposed development is set behind the existing fifth storey addition, the
scheme is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the occupiers. In respect of the
distances to other surrounding properties, these distances are in excess of the 21 metres
set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts,
designed to protect the privacy of existing residents.

Terraces are proposed on the roof, however given the location of these spaces, they are
not considered to overlook the surrounding properties to an unacceptable degree. Similarly,
the scheme is not considered to result in an unacceptable loss of light to these occupants.

In terms of the visual impact of the proposal, there is concern with regards to the design
and detailing of this addition on the roof which in addition to the added bulk on the roof
would appear unduly visually intrusive within the surrounding area.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Policy OE5 of the Local Plan: Part Two (November 2012) notes proposals for noise
sensitive developments where occupiers may suffer from noise and vibration will not be
permitted in areas which are expected to be become subject to unacceptable levels of
noise or vibration. Applications are required to demonstrate that developments can be
insulated and designed to protect them from external noise.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The minimum floorspace
requirements for a 2 bedroom 3 person flat is 61 sgm. The proposed plan indicates the
proposed flat would be 89sgm. The layout of bedroom two is a concern due to the limited

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

width at 1.9m.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The site has a PTAL of 4 (Good) which suggests there will be a reduced reliance on private
cars for certain trips to and from the property. There are 21 car parking spaces and 10
cycle parking spaces on site. The site has its own vehicular access point on Pembroke
Road which is located opposite Station Approach. The proposal is to create an additional
2bed flats on the roof of the building. There has been a recent appeal against a similar 2x1
bed development on the roof of the building that was dismissed but not on highway
grounds. The inspector was of the opinion that such a development would not generate any
significant impact on the local highway.

The Planning Statement suggests the 19 existing flats are served by the 21 space car park
and the Inspector at the recent appeal accepted this notion. Should the application be
considered acceptable condition should be secured ensuring this flat has an allocated
parking space and that no parking spaces are to be let or sold to others outside the
development. There is no information provided in support of the application in terms of
additional secure covered cycle or any additional refuse/recycling facilities but these issues
can be conditioned. The same applies to EVCP points and the site should contain at least
4 active and 4 passive charging points.

Urban design, access and security

These issues are covered elsewhere in the report.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

None.
Planning Obligations

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to the determination of this application.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



7.22 Other Issues

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not relevant to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

This application seeks consent for an extension at roof level to create 1 x 2 bedroom
residential unit. The proposal by reason of its design, massing, siting and form would
appear as a visually dominant and incongruous addition on the roof of the building, which
would detract from the buildings setting within the street scene and adjacent Conservation
Area and Area of Special Local Character. The scheme by virtue of its siting and design,
would also appear visually dominant when viewed from the neighbouring properties, to the
detriment of their amenity.

Overall, there are concerns with the scheme as presented and it fails to comply with the
Councils adopted policies and guidance, and is thereby recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2

The London Plan (2016)

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Zenab Haji-Ismail Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



me,b'gk

\

Kingsend N
Court

avoud aN3 1S3M

Central
House

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
or identification purposes only. 5-9 Pembroke Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the i . . ] .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 38324/APP/2017/2287 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant _
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: &
© Crown copyright and database -
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey (-]\PI L L I N G D O N
rights 2016 North Page 94 August 2017

LONDON




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address CLUB HOUSE, MIDDLESEX STADIUM BREAKSPEAR ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Single storey building for use as changing rooms, involving demolition of
existing outbuilding.

LBH Ref Nos: 17942/APP/2017/2084

Drawing Nos: 001
002
003 a
Date Plans Received: 07/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/06/0017

Date Application Valid: 19/06/2017
1. SUMMARY

The proposal is to remove two existing changing room buildings and a shed and replace
them with one single storey building for use as changing rooms.

The proposals are considered to integrate with the vicinity and would not have a
detrimental visual impact on the character and appearance of the existing building or the
Green Belt setting. They are therefore recommended for approval.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 003 a, and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

oL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



activities

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities
LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site forms part of the Hillingdon Football Club site on the North Eastern side of
Breakspear Road. It falls within the Green Belt as designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to remove the existing temporary changing room buildings and replace
them with a single storey building for use as changing rooms.The changing rooms would
be for two separate teams, and a further separate room for referees.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
17942/APP/2016/3158 Hillingdon Borough Football Club, Breakspear Road Ruislip
Installation of 3 x temporary changing room cabins.

Decision: 01-02-2017  Approved

18443/ADV/2008/65 The Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

Display of a temporary banner sign for 18 months. (Retrospective application)

Decision: 29-09-2008 Refused

18443/APP/2012/3037 The Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

The installation of a 24m lightweight lattice mast with 3 no. antennas installed on 3m head frame
1 no. 300mm dish, radio equipment housing and ancillary development.

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



Decision: 28-05-2014 NFA

18443/APP/2013/3732 Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

Single storey front extension

Decision: 25-03-2014  Approved

18443/APP/2014/827 Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

Use of land as a dog training school involving installation of 2 x sheds (Application for a Certifice
of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Decision: 21-05-2014 Refused

18443/APP/2015/3181 Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

Installation of parking area to rear of site

Decision: 18-11-2015 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

17942/APP/2016/3158 - Installation of 3 x temporary changing room cabins. Granted
temporary planning permission for 2 years.

17942/APP/2003/646 - Extension to clubhouse, erection of a new toilet block, laying out of
two artificial playing fields and five turf playing fields, landscaping and associated car
parking and vehicular access. Approved 05/09/05.

- This application has been implemented in that all the weather pitch has been built with
associated flood prevention works agreed with the Environment Agency, the approval of the
landscape management plan and compliance with conditions 5, 6, 15 and 21 has been
implemented.

17942/S/95/1234 - Erection of extensions to the existing clubhouse and existing
grandstands, one new grandstand, turnstiles and toilet block. Creation of three new playing
fields (including one artificial pitch with floodlighting) and additional parking and
landscaping. Widening of road outside football club to provide a right hand turn lane and
creation of an in and out access (involving demolition of outbuildings). Approved

37/01/1999.
17942/R/94/0984 - Retention of portable building for changing rooms. Approved
23/06/1998.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment activities

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

A total of 2 neighbouring occupiers and the Ruislip Residents Association were consulted on
21.06.2017. A site notice was also displayed.

No comments were received.

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



Internal Consultees

No internal comments.

7.
7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open. This is achieved by resisting inappropriate development which by
definition is harmful to the Green Belt.

In this case the proposal relates to the erection of a single storey building on an area of
land which is currently occupied by existing buildings and/or surfaced in hard standing.
This area is already in use as a Club and car park. The proposal would comprise a single
storey building for use as changing rooms. The existing standalone buildings which
currently houses the club's changing facilities are to be demolished.

Changing facilities in this scale of building to support an open air recreation use such as
football are judged to be an appropriate development in the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not have a significantly or unacceptably
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing situation and
accordingly it does not represent inappropriate development.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this type of development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this type of development.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this type of development.
Impact on the green belt

Hillingdon Local Plan policy OL1 defines the types of development considered acceptable
within the Green Belt. These are predominantly open land uses including agriculture,
horticulture, forestry, nature conservation, open air recreational activities and cemeteries.
It states that planning permission will not be granted for new buildings or changes of use of
existing land or buildings which do not fall within these uses.

Policy OL2 states that, where development proposals are acceptable within the Green Belt,
in accordance with Policy OL1, the Local Planning Authority will seek comprehensive
landscaping improvements to enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

London Plan policy 7.16 reaffirms that the "strongest protection" should be given to
London's Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance, and emphasises that
inappropriate development should be refused, except in very special circumstances.

The NPPF reiterates at paragraph 87 that inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. At paragraph 88 it states that:

"When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations".

This is achieved by resisting inappropriate development which by definition is harmful to the

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



Green Belt. Furthermore, Policy OL4 states that the replacement or extension of buildings
within the Green Belt will only be acceptable where they do not result in a disproportionate
change in the bulk and character of the original buildings, and the development would not
injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt by reason of siting, design or activities
generated. This objective is broadly reiterated in paragraph 89 of the NPPF.

The proposal would increase the size of the building area to 80 sq.m and with the
demolition of the existing buildings to be removed (60 sq.m), the increase would be 20
sq.m. Given the limited scale of development; the single storey nature of the extension; its
siting set in from the boundary of the site with the highway; and the existence of a number
of trees on and around the site which would retract views of the extension, it is considered
that the proposal would not result in a disproportionate change to the bulk and character of
the building nor would it significantly increase the built up appearance of the site. It would
therefore have an acceptable impact upon the visual amenity of the locality and the Green
Belt. As such, it would be in compliance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies BE13, BE19 and OL4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Any proposal would need to accord with the design policies set out within the Built
Environment section of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and relevant design standards contained within the Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts. In particular Policy BE13 requires
that the layout and appearance of developments harmonise with the existing street scene
and other features of the area.

The proposed extension, by reason of its height and size, and position adjacent to the Club
House, would not adversely impact on the character and appearance of the existing
building. The site is situated at the end of a car park. Therefore, the proposed extension
would be set away from the highway, would be below the height of the main building and
would appear subordinate to the main Clubhouse building.

Taking into consideration the positioning and the overall height and depth of the proposal, it
would appear compatible with the existing main building and the surrounding area. It would
therefore not have a detrimental with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies BE13, BE19 and OL4 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Local Plan: Part 2 policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24, in addition to the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts, seek to safeguard residential
amenity.

The nearest residential property would be located approximately 50m away to the south
east of the application site. Given this distance, combined with the relatively minor nature of
the proposals and existing trees and planting which would significantly screen views of the
building, it is not considered that the scheme would have any adverse impact on residential
amenity.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this site.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The extension would be positioned on a hardstanding area adjacent to the existing building
and the car park. Given its limited size and position any encroachment into the car parking

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

747

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

area would be very small and therefore the existing parking arrangement would not be
materially affected by the proposal.
Urban design, access and security

The existing arrangements for access and security would remain in place.
Disabled access

The existing arrangements for access would remain in place.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this site.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are no trees that would be affected by the proposal.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this site.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this site.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this site.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this site.
Comments on Public Consultations

None.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this site.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this proposal.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed changing rooms due to their overall size, scale and positioning would
integrate with the existing Club house and the surrounding area. The proposal would
therefore not detract from the openness, character and appearance of the Green Belt and
would be in compliance with relevant Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and London Plan Policies.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Mandeep Chaggar Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



The Homestead

Football
Ground

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Club House,
Middlesex Stadium

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
17942/APP/2017/2084 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 104 August 2017

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 13

Report of Head of Planning & Enforcement
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED),
SECTIONS 198-201 AND 203

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 759 (TPO 759):
11 HARVIL ROAD, ICKENHAM

s . Sy 5 — b i
Figure 1: The subject Beech tree in the front garden of 10/11 Harvil Road (viewed from Highfield Rd)

1.0 Summary

1.1 To consider whether or not to confirm TPO 759 (with or without
modification).

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That TPO 759 is confirmed.

3.0 Information

3.1 The making of TPO 759 was authorised under delegated powers on 26th April
2017, because a nearby resident advised the Council that the subject Beech tree was
under threat of being removed.

3.2 This Beech tree is an attractive landscape feature that contributes to the
amenity and arboreal character of the local area. The tree merits protection on amenity

grounds.

33 The tree has a long-life expectancy and so has the potential to develop into a
significant landscape feature that will provide amenity for decades to come.

Page 105



4.0 The Objection

4.1 A formal objection (summarised verbatim below) to TPO 759 was received
from Mr & Mrs Matharu (at No. 11 Harvil Road) for the following reasons:

1. Boundary Wall - The tree is currently on my property boundary wall and in the
long-term, we wish to build a brick or fence boundary wall to preserve my
family’s privacy and better space maintenance. The current positioning of the tree
may prevent such development.

2. Right to Privacy - Our right to privacy (Article 8 of Human Rights Act 1998)
will be affected if we are not able to maintain our privacy by developing a
suitable wall or fence with my neighbour. As a consequence of the Order, we
would be forced to lose our right to privacy on my property and family life.

3. Access Concerns - Due to the tree and vast hedges surrounding my property
boundary, the access entry between no. 10 and no. 11 Harvil Road is detrimental
impact as there are open gaps to enter through my premises without permission.

4. Tree Condition - The tree does not get look to be in good health condition and
over time the tree branches may get weaker and will damage my property.

5. Visibility Concerns - The tree impacts our visibility from my property as it
prevents our view from the left hand side of the property.

6. Safety Concerns - Due to the close positioning of the tree to my property, poor
weather may cause the tree to fall and put my property at risk of damage and thus
my family at potential danger risk

7. Financial Implication - The Preservation Order puts a financial risk where any
tree maintenance or work with seeking the Council’s approval would come at a
significant risk to my family.

8. General Garden Maintenance - The tree acts as a shade over the front garden
and doing so prevents parts of the front lawn getting sunlight and in doing so
preventing growth and plantation. Leaves falling in the garden frequently need to
be cleared and causes prolonged garden maintenance.

Page 106



5.0 Observations on the objections to TPO 759:

5.1 It is possible to build a wall or fence to each side of the tree and /or also box it
off (see Figure 2 below). Alternatively, a boundary hedge could be planted.

Figure 2: An example of a fence constructed around a tree

5.2 As mentioned in Section 1, it is possible to successfully construct a wall or
fence around an existing tree. It is also worth noting that only a 2m wall or fence
could be constructed along the boundary (without planning permission). This tree
could add to and improve privacy.

53 The access point into the property is situated on the opposite side to the Beech
tree and so it does not impede access in any way (see Figure 3 below).

Page 107



Figure 3: The Beech and the entrance to 11 Harvil Road

5.4 At the time the Beech tree was inspected, it appeared to be in good health.
There are no reasons to suspect the tree is dangerous or that any branches will become
weaker. If, in the unlikely event, the tree did become dangerous, consent would not be
required for its removal.

5.5  The house is centrally located within a large, wide plot and the Beech tree is
on the boundary. The small Horse Chestnut situated centrally within the front lawn
blocks more of the views than the Beech. In any case, there are still very impressive
views from most parts of the house.

5.6  As already mentioned in section 4.4, the tree appears to be in good health.
There is no reason to suspect the tree will fall.

5.7 A TPO adds no extra financial burden to tree maintenance and there is no cost
to submit a TPO application.

5.8 The Beech tree is located south-east of the house and so can only shade a part
of the front garden and the front of the house in the morning. The main amenity area
(the rear garden) will not be affected. In any event, shading (and leaf fall) is a natural
phenomenon associated with trees and is to be expected as a consequence of living in
a sylvan environment.

Page 108



5.0 Other matters:

There were no other objections to or representations about TPO 759.

6.0 Conclusion

It is recommended that TPO 759 be confirmed.

The following background documents were used in the preparation of this report:
e Provisional Tree Preservation Order No. 759 (2017)

e [Letter of objection to TPO 759

Page 109



Page 110



)

EETE 000 | ABAN S BOUBLDAC) T} 0T RU00 Baeaser [lE Elr.__r_u; rtj_;a

008 .
udy €0 \\\

ﬁ 0541 ereog 7

LLLOSE GEELD - Op sucudes |
AN LBAN PR BERLmIN BLRD 241D

SaDIAIaG ,SjUapIsay

NOdONITTIH

40 HONOYO8 NOANOT

65/

J8OUINN 181 () UOIEAIBSE 8a1]

L ELLaY 3]
PEOY [IndEY || & Yaaag

HIADI440 AIASIHOHLNY
Q3INDIS
TINNOD IHL 40 HIEW3W

a3aNSIs

%Jf S50 i
—_— ) _I|h_ | _. .%'
e 3
=4 I w__ _._m_.
_ —— ‘o
_ i ey i
o=t -
G|
el e __|_ | JJ__, _m _
-
B S
. o f “.
e 1r J ___ i1
RENEE
_,_._| L ___ / m
4 J f ()
L o, (@)
| ] . 3
e T




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 23rd August
2017

T™ILLINGDON

UUUUUU

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 52 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Two storey, 3-bed, detached dwelling and conversion of dwelling house into 1
x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed self-contained units involving single storey rear
extension with associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of
existing garage.

LBH Ref Nos: 4913/APP/2016/4358

Date Plans Received: 01/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 01/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 16/12/2016 12/04/2017
16/12/2016

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



8JNj08YYDIY JOUUOD,O Sewoy |

yn'e-00}@ojul '3
€88 £0G 9¥8.0 ‘N
269 €89 /9210 'L

arl 6198
allysplojpag ‘Apues
‘peoy abpuquie) z|

aimaayyaly

NY1d NOILVOO1

NOZ SVYH
31001Sv3
avoy an3 Q1314 zs

NOSQHVHOIY

10s0

0191

FLFT oG TN PILIERS BIYOH TY TI0Z SUOMALOD LSO ) AT AR

0521/l

Page 115



WD 0UUC0,0 PO

A e-a0yBoju 3
EBE A0S SFRIO W
CEOERD LWL

ar G19g
aisaiojpag fpues
‘peay sfipucued 7

TEATT HOON LSHL &

ANSS1 ONINNYT

&
/
A %.
/ i s
; o 5 lmpuncy Kusdard may
L,
v..\.\.
4
i

00z:} ueld eyg

Bk Emdar of @ waswp
o Bi7 oy el —c |

ORI R — fmm
psRdoin P pRINSERS —— P N
P wx0dop 5y
aaunE ufrooiees SN S0 Ay

Y

Page 116

2 X

5
~—

L S S A_
ol —



Architeciure

é
-]
7
K
£
5
E
3
3
d

PLANNING ISSUE

T.01767 683682
M. 07846 507 BB3

52 FIELD END ROAD

"
2
£
&
i

E info@toc-a.uk

. |
e
i ht
| e
| s 3
L
! I ‘E o ]
RS o S S
= 2
! B i
| mw i .
L q
2 i i il i
» A4
g g =l e
Jol = :
it 1
£
‘
=
=3
&
3
i ;
5 ¥
== s o
1
S
=
=
o
=
= i 2
5 H »
o
2
] [}
@
=]
w
c
(=3
b= =
ko 8
wi L
E= B
& =

Page 117

| Ground Floor



MDANDIY 0UUE0,0 SPWOL

ane-a0iBojur gy
EB8 L0S SPRIO W
TEAERY LWL

ary gles R S AN e s

k 100|4 punol
ok HES

W W P
L P oy T Coasg e
e oy Wy 0 M S weg

00Z:) ued ayg

U SOy WA S )0 B s e ey AR 3 L0 Bumsa) wes

oo uoiiers|3 (jsioH) spis uones(3 juol4

p
30w b
et Shigation o == l.n‘k
= | | i
ANSSI ININNVIA
s sy w5 30T b s o 2o St
dooj4 jsii4 sﬁ
TR G R & JIOW g sy [ T g ]
uoljens|3 (usples) epig uoneas|d Jeay

]

Page 118




Themas O'Canner Architeciure

= =
s 883
& ¥ i
£l A
5 BES
=
|
I_P'k-—-__-l
| s
i |
| i
|
| §
=
@
el
| S
Ll =
T
=
8
: =
F o
5 i
5 . &
! '
il I
=t E !
] 3
7 :
| Y
| I
| F
—
= 8
| 8 =
v 5
= 2
@ =
=] W
\ =
|
i
i
E i — = e ——— e .
sk
6.1
\
5 £
5 k=
a [
s B
e -
E <
= 5}




DANDIY U000 SO

AN e-a03Bojui 3

EBGLOS BHRIOW
TBOERY LMIDL
100|- punoy
T 100|184 38 4 punai9
‘peoy sfpuawen 74
T
7 Tuscon
_ -
S~ 1s provead]
kS )
| e
Tumopsg :
. 3
L e

ANSS1 ININNYT

uoneAs|3 Jesy

Jooj4 isi4 |

_.h

100]4 punoiy

UoIjo8S / UOKeAS[3 B3PI

Page 120

CEEL]




16t0
MM E

BOUNDARY TREATMENTS,

:
?
!
i

P G
- T

ol A e - 001:} ued syg

p— e
S — = iy e

BABIO| inbeiT L R00ZH cnug

10w g Ry ume]

e s ——— i | usaw Busngome oy (@
Bt BOoRwIng
s

SRy Umelis SeUAD PAESRL,

[ R R

Busam s

e R e e e

Buspoy, e 4002 |

prsilal S
—~ ey By

) st sbelimn wayy
i L

(R

P WaEaa kanence B

e L]
Ampirey Bunn

Page 121

Architeciurs

E info@toc-a.uk

T.01757 683682
M. 07846 507 883




WMDY OUUET,0 Wy

AN e-a00@ojui 3
EBE A0S SFRIO W
CEOERD LWL

34 6195 Saws n 001:} uonosg syg
aumsaiojpag fpues iy B
“peny sbgusues 7 _ _

i £ ng
lew B

L]
PG PU3 PR

NOLID3S 3115 8 =, v

OV ONS O ES

3o
a1al

NS ONINNYT

[V}

(q\}

b

(0]

&

00Z:1 ue|d Aemuybiy a

\\\\\.. .il\ll\l\\llil\\li \\

/
____




5 g et st st s
i i L v 8 e

ot e b s e e 3
o o v s ooy 4 e B e

e e e e i e £ s e

EREITEEEE

s L Aot g et s
o 3 s e Yo s

l..ﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂ s
i wousn ol ..”ulh.lu_lluﬂl .\".ﬂln‘uﬂnllu.mlu
1IN0 dIaM | =ori===ms
ety uoelalg saly | Sowimung |







Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

52 Field End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4913/APP/2016/4358 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 125 August 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

H~HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 197 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER
Development: Installation of roller shutter.

LBH Ref Nos: 22149/APP/2017/2101

Date Plans Received:  08/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 03/07/2017

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



SNINNY1d

HA0M Y] 0 RLRIIUIOD A0S S50
AL TRy Suogees AU jo palunur ag o 5 uBisag Toy « Jopenuos
Aq e 3 e ag Of Sucssaang (1Y « Bemeip e go aess ou ag

wor el Gulspen 13
¥ 0L 0L 0L THO W

ZNY BN ki
‘anuany Aaied 15

RIEE] BAjFRBIT |

E@ﬁm@m B)EZ0)

108 0se1-243

unsiaay “op Suimesr
LIDZ INOT s
aleq Auimeig A uMESD
DSET'T L

BEIS 715 133Ys

NYId NOLLY2OT

AL Fuimerg

HOT SYH ‘81021583 ‘PROY PUT PIaKd L6T

HALLNHS TYNYILKF 40 NOILYTIVLSNI 0350d0Hd
31l 12afosd

109DMZOD LIWHIWHIS

wan

Baly Japnys pasododd T

aurn Aepunog 3315 e——
AIN

[ -

S B S B

B&L

" eor.

_.. Nm.n.. i

HLYON

181

Page 127



ONINNY1d

NYd HOON4 0350d0Nd
P fonad %
108 05-043
_uorsiazy iy,
LTE INAT Vs o o o
sjesg auis s
: " NOIWAIE
SNOILYATTE B SNYTd 0350404d / ONLLSIXI NOLLYAT13 1NOY4 Q350d0Hd 15W3 QISO40Hd
3t Sudeig
UDT SVH 0515E3 PEOK PU3 PIAH £61 .
H3LLNHS TYNYILNT 40 NOLYTIVISNI 0350408d — -
iy walong = =
1O9M1ZEO LIWHINHIS B ==
|-+ =
At 1] =
= Er
= E=x I
= = |8
.
: -
= —
OIAOII QIS0A0U = ==
= wl - i
= :
L — — = e r— &
_.Hu e e e ey T—T—1—T e X ..Jﬂql_”E — P =iy =t E ~—
e S o e T AT [ N
_h_l._. ...»lm.r».”>u_.|> —— “.“...“I.h” “I“.”hw-”“mnuﬂu 1u H|>”|F>.” I.F-._.l.l E e - e T (@)
ﬂlmr.-.u.q ......... o T ey e P B P T v e A i D e e ey i o .WIWUM e e e e e e e e ©
. T et nee et e — i o et e | e ot n o e T T T i e S e PRAADY T P A I Aot S T o
o S e e S i s e . — T T T T T T ey -
— RN N A AR ANAA AL AT
NOLVAIT3 LNOY4 SNLLSIA Pt
# /
: et
DHONT S i e e
. HIAALL INILSKD R .a. “.q__..
0521 310s o e
NY1d NOLLYDON |“.,m..“, r vo— - ..W..h».“.. e m .._.Iu._“H_.Hl_LI_Ll... .In__H___ .Jlr._..l
) E T R e R ey ey et yer o
e B e
e = o e e e e e e e
I e ..._r.n_.h.ulnnn.nn.l-. mm = e e et e e i e lln._|||n
= e = s e e e e e R e e e e ..L«|“|q
bty ey T L = ,n.ﬂ”..u. —iT g = e T 1._n _—F_. s
e e e o S e e s ws ey s S I e P Pt S e | e e e i m I L — u.l.luu.. - oL I |~|
_”_ ‘._...-.ﬂ_w.u.u. T .I...ﬂ..— _“. z _.ﬁ.lhn_ it e G ._IH .ﬂuﬁuﬂ“ n_m e e S S e T S S S =
|~_.|.r“_—| T — i e .“_ .hlﬂm.l.ullw =T T : T w iy iy n.H_H—r_. ﬂﬁﬂ.ﬁu = “. 8 L
T - T T e e - x T - =] e S S e et e ]
e ] e T e e S P e e e i s e i e e o o e e o e S e s ] e e iy
lJ..r ............... ._- ......... I - - I nri>.LI_>-H.h-|—-.-—|r-_.._.. T
- - ¥ o o e s e - o e e e e e gyt - <~IHL|<L|<L|.|L == e i i i s e s i —
e oy oy Ty T T e ey oy Ty iy oy iy Ty iy iy Ay i e i = TN FANT RN R R RN ER RN RR RN RN ER RN OARNMS
. =1 o I 1t e e v T 4 e s
Sl ] H P
" e e i S S S S S S S S S S S S i T - I Ty Ty iy Ty ".|T.|...AV e e e e T
R T T e e e e e e e e s e :
. e — v e e m— S — — o T e e e P e ) S " e v e P — R - - -
— — : —————— [ [ LT T T L Ceren L gy
- =
, . m
\ T




_—

Car Park

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

197 Field End Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 TUW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
22149/APP/2017/2101 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

North Page 129 August 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 88 LONG LANE ICKENHAM

Development: Three storey building comprising of 7 x 2-bed and 2 x 1-bed flats with
associated parking, cycle and amenity space, involving demolition of existing
detached dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 29164/APP/2016/4622

Date Plans Received: 22/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2017 30/06/2017

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



LOCATION PLAN

Trs Flan mciudes e followng Licenssd Dete OF Masterian Black and Whis

FOF Locaton Plan by tha O Suremy Geograptic Catabese and O

Reproductan o whole o i part is "'".'-".',"..T.'.. of

Oranance Survey. The repressniation of & rosd, vach o pein s o scerce o Scale; 1:1250, paper size: A4
lmum.ﬂm‘-muu.:n -mamwﬂe

Survey 100051673 B oo 88 LONG LANE ICKENHAM UB10 BSX

160316 / 01

Page 131




00Z ‘L s
LNOAYT »2078/3LI1S 03S0d08d 7
i/
TN (
. 3\ [
— S W A
)
I ) ey ~ N
/ \fl\ e .‘\ .
P N
___.\ ,,//// N\ -
L] m_\l:\ /
™ ™\ N \
/- N il ° ]
@ ) y J
,/I/ \\._ // x\\
) /\AU.,\t".../,r /|.”,\ = \
Vs ~. { )
s
A D
/ N
___ - ]
J
R A

00L:L
LNOAYT d00T4 ANNOYD J3S0408d




] Lot g -
L] e T IR
e ey 1 -
s e e A
a oned pagea 3
o omed grscome | -
) s s | -y
s e paea B
...E e paagenz vy

LNOAYT 4004 d350d04d

e g ' ) B 1 - MO PR AR

LNOAYT ¥0074 ONOD3S J350d0Y

LNOAYT HO0T4 1Sdl4 d350d04d




amg

FEEERRERG
|

LNCAYT ¥0074 ONOD3IS J3S0d0dd

s

Page 134

LNOAYT 3004 0350d0dd LNOAYT H0014 1544 d350d04d




,

\ -
\

\
,
7

\
] T
\

The Douay Martyrs Sch

\ °
. North Hillingdon Ce
X &
%

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

88 Long Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 TUW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
29164/APP/2016/4622 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

North page 135

August 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

TILLI i G

LONDON

DON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 35 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Change of use from Use Class A2 (Bank) to Use Class A1/A3
(Shops/Restaurants/Cafes) with external alterations

LBH Ref Nos: 3445/APP/2017/1715

Date Plans Received:  11/05/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 11/05/2017

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



TEEGTra0 0N W, P [l o B

Uc (1 [ EVD0SZIE '00S: L WS ["3}d dno1g gs s WS 1G70R Ul i J0jSUIEu0 SUT O] IS no0n S U0 SU0IEsmn
EEEED 9EI60 P 210Z/50/0L Fwa ”_”.p_h_u._“:“_aau i m_hﬂca_,u_m_ 5 3_»53,.3_3_”%__
—_— 5 e 4 _ 2 5
oog:L Bujuue)d s 0L i ES o B oran .nmu_.._nu: . dift 4 PPRRO Suonenseds sEpow Bupnou) Leeuusu) Fakd S.nuhﬁﬁm WO (B G
JUS MOOH LNOAVIZV - i yuayd| '‘peoy | §g wsamm avs| yBujg ysajuey Jomubug uj pEes B0 B 1) ‘s iBuddos & wuewoa ubissEp sp pue L
ue|d a)s

Y

' 0L 08 DS OF O 0Z Ob (

= Z1v PN ay
payunubisape; @) @ weyieus
Py uBrsape M paefyaog JU0ISIH 8y L
ZEL9LE rEGLIO) Fhe ‘doys ssaUior au

pa3TWIT ubTISap 3IN3093TYDIE

Page 137

[

0 ICALEL) 8T
BE - OB L8807
Ryued 'puahy ‘supey



Twithos:) v e dnoig 3NE =
BE60 = LLBZ/SO/OL

Bupuumg | WILZ G T Beme A A

HOOHE IN0AY] TV - Weyuag | oian ‘efplgEn wnyuaysy ‘pray SAETNEMG GE s ne | uifleizg ysaquIwy S

3IN3033TYIIE

0BV
iV O
S5300%

e gAY by



HOOB INC

bBuuoojd4 2 ainjiuing

R— | .. I I || —— e — P e W o v AT TiF RS

e {»I‘vh—auans_, ~ dno. el | 9 i o I St a0 ALY S U [ B0 ) SUERRLD penuiSEap) o e SIS
| i ey i DS U O SN RTINS PR D ST

e s, e : . A [ e g 0 e e ek FENRS  primmn uskgoq sorem st

HOOR LNOAY] TV - WiEyug |ovan “efpuirn weyuays peoy S T i uBusg ysspuy sanbio gt n Pl e I B 3 e T ZE1D4 PEOLIO) by oS SRUIOT UL

5 E

IA0RY \
SV 0L / . |
SSAIIW |
s ]
W s Ly G
H ——
I ]
& [
(%) ==
I
diim 5
B
b . ". -
| a ; _
K |
. @ _
X
—— - _ .%' r—g % |
i [l ....H_H ]
“udns : — ] =teellis
. e

oty i e
e —

A ‘AN iy



T e dneio aws Ll " UomALD TR} ¥
b o tyotsaos o [Pt AR [ s = e o e e Y o
Bupuueg = ) WiAT 05 Bevea | di fapens | 3 Saenrn r o v = P ubmane wan TURAN IU0IER AL
HOOB INOAVT ZV - Weigung OLEn ‘efpugen ‘weyuay peay G e | uBuig ysauEy s _,”a!i!_uu.ﬁﬂ._k_l...uq.-i B e e TR ih

s|iejag ‘juosydoys pasodold g Bunsixy

5

sjiejep Juolydoys woydoys Bupsixg

AR T3 M i
@iiym £36 padesds Jieves jeulnie)
]

a0 ST dvana dn (R RS SEIINIME
B3t i JBATS BN i)

vy pnrnaE pesBajus Buren paiy
-#Ena pageay S sIRuIE

PAIEIE-00 Y BIEI-S FPUISUY DV
palunow *In-5)ing LN § Wi ¥ 0 pany
ThURE FIRUDRIM O DU uBRIG
A

Bupsstasd szmimp waungy paprs-apgnog

UD{IEU|WY RudBIu)
ullis Bupinaiosd prepuelg

K
K

Page 140

PRI <Ly i jouydoys pasodoiy
bk T3 R e Tl il 1

ey

20 P A R ) ST SO PR R
s iy, SIS 0N Sef)

ey Vel Ui, OLE ' PO N
oy 0 8 L o i P .
Vi e A
i A
a4 WA A O w
P
o ekl 3
ZZ0L TH Aaag waguin, paysiiy 1B ddours yuasason pusiiog S R,
“5913¥1 X0 KAUIBS] 3 UEL 198D PO BRI 87 TG e e s 4 sy g e e
4 dl oy Euame P 1Ry s
!_._3..._ e e TN SRR e g
%&ﬁ&inﬁ;ifg_.iis e éiﬂ
E ¥ gGe . gk wols |
‘P SO0 YL O) PR PATROD JepMod
TS ), A W 9905 SER]UEIS PREIS-aR dn-g)ing
“ITIAS URIQS ¥ g1 ZE0L TV A A e S LD T Y A G ST, AT
G, P03 wii] . UL A R g1 L S W) A0 TR SR Ll R
LAY, RIS Hiead RIIER] MEA SOV D ST} WAIURIP Silg ArAves Ry st bpos g
s sl ey daa

b s
BUILME pas SRBIIM ~ " L T VR U
wi)e) pajeuiwniy Aeusene gim eised Aes) winiwnny A eiqun

e senbnied ey
T 37 e beds 1 Yo ey i W L) LR
G ter

o e acas e s ey
7 W 1 vy (g s 545 ] e s
] s e g ey ) e ey

Eirrdoid ¥p waliry; perm won

& P e
faed “plUgRH e



N AN \\\ ,
S~ Shelter *~ S
SR S

Rectory

[

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
35 Swakeleys Road Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: [
3445/APP/2017/1715 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: SAZA
North Page 141 August 2017 HHILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 236 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Change of use from a group home into 5 x 1-bed self-contained flats with
associated parking and cycle stores.

LBH Ref Nos: 72634/APP/2017/769

Date Plans Received:  28/02/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/02/0017
Date Application Valid: 14/03/2017 28/02/2017
13/03/0017

North Applications Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



Do gar by

=t

111250 @ Ad

FEB 2017
Lrwrg M
503/P/01

______"hl P T

Doyt

236 SWAKELEYS ROAD,

ICKENHAM, UB10 8AU

P ——

- ——

.

{ Dewregen

il

f

SITE LOCATION PiRage 143




Adli
4102 834
Jiva ]

'OVOM SATTINVME oRE
LA

ssoeds
Bunyied pasodoid
10} £0/d/€0S ON
Buimelp o} Jajey

g 31IS

S

SN} UMOYS S81018

ayig paJnaes jo
[ uoyeao| pasodoid

(saoeds g|.)
‘sded Jooy) pesodoid g Buised [eunwiwo
Bunsixa 1oj GO ¥ £0/d/€0S

O ‘shN Buimelp 0 Jajey




05g!L ®|o3g L=\
wez 0z st { SRS A, 4
C20ds onidYwd e Nowgey 2 2 3 .W =
OMIMIHS My Td NOILYI0T FUS
NOLLHHYE

FTVE AN ALIS ATINVMS
LErOH

Page 145




70/d/€0S

= N ORiMVRD

Lz 934 5. 00L°1 5

SNV1d 30074 DNILSIX3

WAl idCaq

NV1d d0014 ONNOY9
9€¢ _ 3WOH dNOYD

nve 0l8n
WYHNIN)I

OVON ATF1INVMS 9€Z
Jog 3pg

" S A e TR

Sal L)1ID) Ui - dasg
J30IS UM awoy dnodg
uoslad § woodpag [

UOI IpOWWONY 40 BINRAUIS

NIHOLIM

ONINIO/ADNN

Wooda3e

=

NI-d331S

— J=] . ey == =

Al
%EZ oN 1V74 9NUSIX3™

N¥1d H0074 LSyl

K

96  3WOH dNoy9

Page 146

WOOYO3E

AHONNY




ZSEEZS JeIWRig

90 /d/€0S

A3 N DNIMYH0

Y ET| o

o O N.. Fu._(um

SNOILVA3I3  ONILSIX3

NOLLdIFDS30

nve 018N
WVHN3MI
Qv0d AITINVMS 9€Z

L29r0Hd

Jog 30§

wel' s 3 » oz g

SNOILVAZTIN SIONVHI ON : 310N

NO/IVAIT3 ISV3 HLNOS

HJOMYIUG 304D ——

Buippop Jaqui) ——

L

NOILVAZT3  LSIM HLMON

${J0MY1Iq 3IDYUDY

L1 [
HI g Im
H 10
NOILVAITI  LSIMHLNOS
L1 -
Floallom om| T
| 0o gom|Oom| |
Sy unibys NOILVAIT3  ISV3I HIMON
says g pasodord _
e T ]
| o: HH H 1 o

Page 147

buippop sequip




50/d/EDS

] oN gyg

L0z 03H 00L:L
5

auvo

SNVd 4004 (03S0d0¥d

NV'd 80074 ONNOYD

MOlL1dioss0

nve oLan

WYHN3Y

av0Yy SATTINVMS O€Z
IrEtond

Jog 3%

R S s

SIVH S IOl

AW0G @ uosIady PagL G {0
M QG @ UoSIBdZ P3gl ¥ o}
M0S & UosRgZ pagl € oM
gy 9U0SI3d 7 pagl Z{od
05 »U0SI3d 7 Pag| |40

UO1{DpoWWONY 40 SNPIUS

= | ey T
INNOT WooYO3g 30NNOT
TIVH

NIHILIN Iroal  NaHauy
i RE
o= .\w
[
NV1d ¥0074 1S4
: .
JONNOT] WoONI38 JONNON
S W
E,aﬁ
.  Hivel[ Jles] LM I
e\ 310 =0 _
: =

Page 148




EXTERNAL MEASUREMENTS

Weight:

99kg (15,8 stone)
Door Aperture;
1116mm (31t 8") x
B800mm (21t 7*)

Height: .
1205mm
e (aft a1y .
S10RE i i
(eft 3") Width:
o 800mm
o s (21t 117)
{2n 9 i
TYMcAL VHEW OF SECURE BY DESIGN BIKE STORE -
IN METAL PINISH PAINTED T) MATCH EXISTNG BRiacwopk
]
o
g u - l! t —2-r|
SCALE BAR T —
TR 286 SWAKELEY ROAD U150 |
ICKENHAM UBIO0 24U " MmARCH 2017
DEBCAIBTION e AEY
BIKE SR DETAILS s03/Play

Page 149

© Copyright




,’/Shelter/ .

2
s
.

.
= .
. . .
S e e
L~ - -

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

236 Swakeleys Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 TUW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72634/APP/2017/769 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

North Page 150 August 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PEMBROKE HOUSE 5-9 PEMBROKE ROAD RUISLIP
Development: Extension of 4th floor accommodation to provide 1 no. two bedroom
apartment

LBH Ref Nos: 38324/APP/2017/2287

Date Plans Received:  22/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/06/2017

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



05 10

20

il

40

T Tins drawing 15 copynght

It is sen ta you in confidence and must not be reproduced or disclosed to third parties withaut o

prine permission

P ot seale Irom s drawang, other than lon Local Authority Planning puposes,

Ihis drawing s ta e read in conjunction with all relevant consullants, specialist manulacturers

dtawings and speciications,

Any disciepancies in dimensions on details on o botween these diawings should Be drawn o ol

attention

Al dimansions are inmilimetres unless notad olherwse

Any survayed information eorpormted within 1his thawing canniol be guaiantesd as accurale
unless conliemed by lived dirnension

Ndrth

RE\‘I DATE JI}ECRIFT'ID‘N

I TNITIAL !CHECKED

a0

. PLANNING

harding rose architects

CLIENT
ANSLIP UK LTD
FROET PEMBROKE HOUSE, PEMBROKE ROAD
HA4 8NQ
TME | ocation Plan
SCALE DATE
1:1250@A4 31.0517
DRAWN PRCOJECT MO,
AC 15.530 L.01

o Page 152




v

—— N

£V@00S L

IWH

LLGOLE

AvD

_ Lo'g 7 0£G'GH
— 0N L0t

uejd ¥o0ig .,
DN8 tYH
av0od IHOHEWId ISNOH IHOHEWI ..

QL7 AN JINSNY

Anaing

s1081lyo.e as0l bulpiey

ONINNV1d

ncan] v | wouanor=) | aiw | Aw

uLpN

AL ey ALy pA L0 Y
it e el e e Bume sy s pemind oo ueihiun i) PEAIT Ay

[Epn 0 e

LT
0 00 LA B4 PNOUE SEUMTHID S| USRWRKD KU SR 0 SLOGUILD 1 sermdanap Ay

“shEEeds pun shuwep
Jutpurachs st i s w1 isai g ) w Auseen sag)

spmntinn Ense | Aol [0 0y L sodio Dussskn gig) wiog spos 00 o0

sopmese o
01 IO I S [y OF PasOTE? 40§ B0 1O Jrwe) Ao pat & |
Wibjuhcdon s Busem | o




o'd ose |

B V. E— )
tmﬂ_n_aﬂﬂ_.
-_a

Ineker) dpg pesadog)
ONA BYH
VO IHOHENE ISMOH IHOHEINT

O RO dITSNY
s

sjoayole s Buipiey ~

[ oNINNVId | 7 = e

"ol i R P g

-~
g s
s ]
=y
b i
i o

Je14 [BUCHIPPY | - 100]d Yunog pasodoid

SO

Page 154




ov

TN LR st

_ z0'd _ - 0£5's1

LLSOLE ey @ook-L
A Ao

L

uejd Joo)4 Bunsey
ONB PYH
QY0Y IHOHEW3d ISNOH IHOHEWID ...,

QLN dINSNY
T

s1081ly2.e 8501 Buipiey

100]4 yuno4 Bunsixg

Page 155

[k 1-2¥] 52081

[
|
_=— = i aonua) G _
DNINNY1d |
—| - P |
DRI s | v | am y
soeir] yauiaid Blijsa Joor) Blagspay
,I—r| — Tordlm| |.||.H .
124 =]
i 7 i 4 E
= - T s m| -F
— P VB I
T _ 1EAAS _ .nHa,i =, |\ ¢
i | T
o el (o —m e L A ﬁl ,.ul
4 ; 88 Jaf
L]
IH“ : 100 Teld Buisixg
|
|
ajeeE =0 gl T - TnILELA pasy A _n___...m._ﬂm_.wuh |
] J i e— [,g-29] 09502

L.
V0 0] i 3 e e ST AT S U 1 LA T 0 LA L Sk Ay

|mEcRdy ELTRIAHEL] T A i (= o B mig

RGOkl Gius g ROy AT o) L rnn Tuuerin ung G Bies 00 a0
“vicemEd anad

W PO ARSI Y| 3 DCIIEIEN ) FREWACHAIG S (D 15 Y30 OORUSEHYCEY U e O Jui g
ubudeton oy Buwanp say) @



_ £0'd _ eSS av
— ]

1
s0e v @ oo
L Lz 3

suaquatys) Dusgsing l
ONB ¥WH
OVOH IHOHEWTd ISN0H THOHENG |

O TSN
s

sjo0alyole sl Buipiey

uoneas|3 153 Yinog Bunsix3g uoneAs|3 1sep Yoy Bunsixgy uoneas|3 1se3 yuop Bunsmg
1 [0l nesoez f gyl suogl £ Lerusl co02

F_ ONINNVY1d

uofieas|3 Isap yinog Buisixg

i
§

Page 156

[ Lii-zvl sael

=l eyt AL TR

%
1
|

I E
I
]

1
|5 151 zems1

I
1
T




_ a _rg.n_ * 086'51 av
TN 0 famaait

LVSOLE ey @ook-L
T aAnoE

ue|d joo|4 pasodog
DN8 PYH
OY0Y IHOHEWd ISNOH IHOHEWd .,

QLN dINsSNY

e

s1081lyoJe 8301 Bulp.ey

ONINNVYId ﬁ | S
e | s | v | am ! ] /- =
¥ mopu Bupsog |
y = !
| : 1 1§ {1
“\ ]
00 OBl UG ooy aiﬁ_ﬂ
Toved By
ETEE! i g

Jes B

£
e ———
]
25
i A3

- i i
e = \ 15 B
T : " .IlJ..I ;. ;
WEIE I\ M1\ ™ nAg
Ustiois | A | usi I . | Lo ) -
— _ - H——+ akgay
50! e @0 =
e LB
Taajons

ol

1w
ﬂu.wEEm. i 1
IC T

an._u:!_ﬂuw...b_ﬂs..._._gﬂi.z
ajusee o i ey b ) 4 pakansn Ay

AN RO SRS BRI AL ) S SHENSLISAD iy

g

1V ) A 5] O ST AL S LT 1O LD IR 0 LSRR ) bl iy
SlESGeas e et

Eced AL T o B )

wtol il G ARy Ay o R R Tl ung bk Bits 100 0

“vicemnEd aned
W (ALY 1 £ PABESE £ PR ) D (L e i FIELA C0 i B )

ubudton oy Buwanp say @

Page 157



8 |cod eeget | £l
S— ] [——
aseie @ ou

A e

SUCHEADYT] PREOdGL| il
NG FYH
OVOH THOHEW ISNOH THOMAN

7T HO STSHY

.

s108)iyose asol Buipiey p

uoieas|3 1se3 |inog pesodoid uoleAs|3 1S8M YuoN pasodold uopeas|y 1se3 Yoy pesodoly
(ERE | 4 Lit-a¥l sioet [ |.a-29] pasoe |
i —i " . 7 A * i _ _ 7 T = i 7 i "
. | [ Sl = _ il (it {l 1
[ [ 1] | [ | |

SNINNYIE ([T - 0 0920 - 1 _

.. e o 1 R | RENSENERREENE
AR ] EREARNEFEREREE

I [ ] 5 ,|=_ - —
_ ] u; Dﬁ [T
_ _ T _ ; { = -
Li-2al sl . 2 Le-aEl srnz Li-2ol ezean w
(0]
(@)}
©
o
uoneas|3 Jsap yinog pasodolg

L & | B AT 2T = __ =" __7 _._,ﬂ,_ﬁ U_ T S I
oo |
e .
H O

Trael GLait

S

l57151 2251




Pﬁz*dbfgk

|

Kingsend
Court

avyod aN3 1S3AM

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
i ndar

or identification purposes only. 5-9 Pembroke Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the X . . . S . ">
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: cale: i
Act 1988 (the Act). 38324/APP/2017/2287 1:1,250 £
Unless the Act provides a relevant : 4,
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: aisgb
© Crown copyright and database i . —~ ; .
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey H | l i | E\l U [j L_) [\
T North Page 159 August 2017

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address CLUB HOUSE, MIDDLESEX STADIUM BREAKSPEAR ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Single storey building for use as changing rooms, involving demolition of
existing outbuilding.

LBH Ref Nos: 17942/APP/2017/2084

Date Plans Received: 07/06/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/06/0017
Date Application Valid: 19/06/2017

North Planning Committee - 23rd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



swool Buibueyy) pasodoid

i) Bkain

SIILIOVL ONIONVHO
ONILSIX3 40 LINIW3DV1d3d

'<{:

\e‘:/
KN
&
)
g

-
x\j

G

| | | | | |
|

wos wo

00S:T 3ITVOS
NY1d 41IS

==z
7




—_—_—
- mwm “ —r-
Ll

=

I—

—_

et
]
]

e T B

= e

-

VN
WEwLL -

swioos BuiBueyd Bunsna

- By

SOV TNIDNYHD
ONILSIXT S0 INIWIDV T3

B8M12 TIVELOOH NOGONITIH
i

(HLYd1004 ONIOV4 ) NOILYASTI LSVI HIHON

—

I

| =

=

NOILVAZT3 LSIM HLHON

EBEEBEE — B

NOILVAZT3 LSY3 HLNOS

7 (1]

_ 1]

1]

Page

NY1d 40014 ONILSIX3
T e L T
Vs
|
- e

-

o o
T 4
= m oy - U
[« [l =
o o =
o o =

oo = e

_ \ /
A -
&
-
Lj |
| Y P 1 | =7
== I
wg wg
NY1d 400 ONILSIX3

2




[ —————

= ) iy
T g e
et

P

1
]

s a] ] W

]

Wi —

[ -

swioos Buibueys pasodoid

- S—

SALINDYS GNIDNYHD
DNILSIXT 40 LNIWIDV T

M2 TIvEL004 NOQONITIIH

—

(HLYd 1004 ONIOV4 ) NOILYAT 13 1SV HLHON

== S _

NOILVYAZTE LSIM HLHON

_HD_HD_HD_HD_HDDH_DH_

_

NOILYA3T3 LSVY3 HLNOS

I

]

NV1d HOO14 d350d404d

=

T ]

o

NY1d 400d d3S0d0Hd

Page 163




The Homestead

Football
Ground

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Club House,
Middlesex Stadium

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 TUW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
17942/APP/2017/2084 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:

North Page 164 August 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of Head of Planning & Enforcement
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED),
SECTIONS 198-201 AND 203

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 759 (TPO 759):
10 HARVIL ROAD, ICKENHAM

Figure 1: The subject Beech tree in the front garden of 10/11 Harvil Road (viewed from Highfield Rd)

1.0 Summary

1.1 To consider whether or not to confio TPO 759 (with or without
modification).

20 Recommendations

2.1  That TPO 759 is confirmed.

3.0 Information

3.1  The making of TPO 759 was authorised under delegated powers on 26th April
2017, because a nearby resident advised the Council that the subject Beech tree was
under threat of being removed.

3.2 This Beech tree is an attractive landscape feature that contributes to the
amenity and arboreal character of the local area. The tree merits protection on amenity

grounds.

3.3  The tree has a long-life expectancy and so has the potential to develop into a
significant landscape feature that will provide amenity for decades to come.

Page 165



4.0  The Objection

4.1 A formal objection (summarised verbatim below) to TPO 759 was received
from Mr & Mrs Matharu (at No. 11 Harvil Road) for the following reasons:

1. Boundary Wall - The tree is currently on my property boundary wall and in the
long-term, we wish to build a brick or fence boundary wall to preserve my
family’s privacy and better space maintenance. The current positioning of the tree
may prevent such development.

2. Right to Privacy - Our right to privacy (Article 8 of Human Rights Act 1998)
will be affected if we are not able to maintain our privacy by developing a
suitable wall or fence with my neighbour. As a consequence of the Order, we
would be forced to lose our right to privacy on my property and family life.

3. Access Concerns - Due to the tree and vast hedges surrounding my property
boundary, the access entry between no. 10 and no. 11 Harvil Road is detrimental
impact as there are open gaps to enter through my premises without permission.

4. Tree Condition - The tree does not get look to be in good health condition and
over time the tree branches may get weaker and will damage my property.

5. Visibility Concerns - The tree impacts our visibility from my property as it
prevents our view from the left hand side of the property.

6. Safety Concerns - Due to the close positioning of the tree to my property, poor
weather may cause the tree to fall and put my property at risk of damage and thus
my family at potential danger risk

7. Financial Implication - The Preservation Order puts a financial risk where any
tree maintenance or work with seeking the Council’s approval would come at a
significant risk to my family.

8. General Garden Maintenance - The tree acts as a shade over the front garden
and doing so prevents parts of the front lawn getting sunlight and in doing so
preventing growth and plantation. Leaves falling in the garden frequently need to
be cleared and causes prolonged garden maintenance.

Page 166



5.0  Observations on the objections to TPO 759: '

5.1 It is possible to build a wall or fence to each side of the tree and /or also box it
off (see Figure 2 below). Alternatively, a boundary hedge could be planted.

'4 o ] . € N e

Figure 2: An example of a fence constructed around a tree

52  As mentioned in Section 1, it is possible to successfully construct a wall or
fence around an existing tree. It is also worth noting that only a 2m wall or fence
could be constructed along the boundary (without planning permission). This tree
could add to and improve privacy.

5.3  The access point into the property is situated on the opposite side to the Beech
tree and so it does not impede access in any way (see Figure 3 below).

Page 167



Figure 3: The Beech and the entrance to 11 Harvil Road

54 At the time the Beech tree was inspected, it appeared to be in good health.
There are no reasons to suspect the tree is dangerous or that any branches will become
weaker. If, in the unlikely event, the tree did become dangerous, consent would not be
required for its removal.

5.5  The house is centrally located within a large, wide plot and the Beech tree is
on the boundary. The small Horse Chestnut situated centrally within the front lawn
blocks more of the views than the Beech. In any case, there are still very impressive
views from most parts of the house.

5.6  As already mentioned in section 4.4, the tree appears to be in good health.
There is no reason to suspect the tree will fall.

5.7 A TPO adds no extra financial burden to tree maintenance and there is no cost
to submit a TPO application.

58 The Beech tree is located south-east of the house and so can only shade a part
of the front garden and the front of the house in the morning. The main amenity area
(the rear garden) will not be affected. In any event, shading (and leaf fall) is a natural
phenomenon associated with trees and is to be expected as a consequence of living in
a sylvan environment.

Page 168



5.0  Other matters:

There were no other objections to or representations about TPO 759.

6.0  Conclusion

It is recommended that TPO 759 be confirmed.

The following background documents were used in the preparation of this report:
® Provisional Tree Preservation Order No. 759 (2017)

e Letter of objection to TPO 759

Page 169



Page 170



)

EETE 000 | ABAN S BOUBLDAC) T} 0T RU00 Baeaser [lE Elr.__r_u; rtj_;a

008 .
udy €0 \\\

ﬁ 0541 ereog 7

LLLOSE GEELD - Op sucudes |
AN LBAN PR BERLmIN BLRD 241D

SaDIAIaG ,SjUapIsay

NOdONITTIH

40 HONOYO8 NOANOT

65/

J8OUINN 181 () UOIEAIBSE 8a1]

L ELLaY 3]
PEOY [IndEY || & Yaaag

HIADI440 AIASIHOHLNY
Q3INDIS
TINNOD IHL 40 HIEW3W

a3aNSIs

%Jf i
—_— ) _I|h_ | _. .%'
P {9
=4 I w__ _._m_.
_ p— =5
| e .muu."
S e L
Gl
el e __|_ | JJ__, _m _
-
B
. o f “.
e 1r J ___ i1
I ET Y
_._._| ||_|.. ___ ../ m
. T | ©
It 1 8
AN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 172



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 52 Field End Road - 4913/APP/2016/4358
	7 197 Field End Road - 22149/APP/2017/2101
	8 88 Long Lane - 29164/APP/2016/4622
	9 35 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham - 3445/APP/2017/1715
	10 236 Swakeleys Road - 72634/APP/2017/769
	11 Pembroke House, 5-9 Pembroke Road - 38324/APP/2017/2287
	12 Club House, Middlesex Stadium - 17942/APP/2017/2084
	13 11 Harvil Road - Tree Preservation Order No. 759
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

